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Over the past year, we have seen 
encouraging signs of an emerging 
innovation culture in the community, 
with a substantial increase in the 
number of co-working spaces and 
start-up companies, and highly 
popular pitching events, technology 
forums and contests. More and more 
success stories of technopreneurs 
were featured in the local media and 
STEM education was given renewed 
emphasis in the school curriculum.

Hong Kong Science and Technology 
Parks Corporation (“HKSTP”) 
continued to make steady progress 
on the journey of transformation that 
began in 2014. Our “3C” strategy of 
Connect, Collaborate and Catalyse 
has borne fruit, leading to closer 
collaboration with academia, the 
investment community, business 
and industry organisations, research 
institutes, consulates and counterparts 
in Mainland China and overseas. The 
stream of mainland and overseas 
visitors to Hong Kong Science Park 
over the year has given us comfort 
that Hong Kong’s innovation and 
technology is gaining recognition.

While we are pleased to receive 
compliments from visitors, we also see 
the need to step up publicity on Hong 
Kong’s talent and research strengths, 
alongside our competitive advantages 
as an international financial and 

business centre. To many, Hong Kong 
has never crossed their mind as an 
innovation hub as we consistently lag 
behind in global innovation indices in 
various studies. Much work remains 
to be done to improve Hong Kong’s 
innovation ecosystem and project a 
fair and balanced image of Hong Kong 
to the international community.

Innovation and technology excels 
with collaboration, bringing together 
bright and beautiful minds from every 
corner of the world to work together 
for a common cause, and breaking 
down administrative and ideological 
barriers. Hong Kong is an open society 
and a small economy. We must bring 
in talent, as well as nurture our own, 
in order to expand our capacity. This 
must be the vision as Hong Kong 
aspires to be a global innovation hub 
in the Greater Bay Area of China, which 
comprises nine Guangdong cities, 
Macau and Hong Kong.

The signing of a Memorandum of 
Understanding between Shenzhen 
and the Hong Kong Special 
Administrative Region Government 
in January 2017, followed by the 
Chinese Premier’s announcement 
to develop the Greater Bay Area, are 
exciting new developments that hold 
immense prospects for Hong Kong 
entrepreneurs. To capitalise on the 
opportunities, we must identify the 
niche areas where Hong Kong has 
relative advantages and complement 
the strengths of other cities in the 
Greater Bay Area. Enhancing mutual 

understanding, building trust and 
embracing innovative solutions to 
remove barriers under “One Country, 
Two Systems” are the essential 
conditions for success. Where there is 
a will, there is a way.

I am most grateful to the new leadership 
team and colleagues at HKSTP for their 
hard work and contribution over the 
year. In particular, I am impressed by 
the sense of mission and urgency that 
prevails among staff members and 
the energy that they exude. At HKSTP, 
we value people and team work, and 
we reward innovation. As Steve Jobs 
once said, “Innovation distinguishes 
between a leader and a follower….
It’s not about money. It’s about the 
people you have, how you’re led and 
how much you get it”.

Fanny Law, GBM, GBs, Jp
Chairperson

LETTER FROM THE CHAIRPERsON
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The year just passed (2016-17) was 
another fruitful one for Hong Kong 
Science and Technology Parks 
Corporation (“HKSTP”) as our strategic 
initiatives to develop an innovation 
and technology ecosystem in Hong 
Kong gathered great momentum. 

Last year also marked a milestone 
for HKSTP as we celebrated our 
15th Anniversary in May. Our team 
has been relentless in its efforts to 
build on the solid foundation laid 
down by our predecessors to create 
a community and an ecosystem 
fostering innovation, technology and 
entrepreneurship. We understand 
that HKSTP’s value will be judged by 
the success of companies in Hong 
Kong Science Park. Thus, we are 
committed to positioning the Park as 
the centrepiece of Hong Kong’s R&D 
endeavours and showcasing the latest 
science and technology developments 
from our Park community.

Within our ecosystem, start-ups, 
technology SMEs, multinational 
corporations, branding and 
creative agencies and advanced 
manufacturing players gathered at 
the Park, InnoCentre and our three 
Industrial Estates to explore new ideas 

that can drive innovation, and more 
importantly, spur diversified economic 
growth for Hong Kong.

The launch of the Innovation and 
Technology Bureau in late 2015 
has led to higher awareness of the 
potential of science and technology 
entrepreneurship for Hong Kong 
by both the public and business 
communities. Academia today is more 
determined than ever to translate 
its discoveries into commercialised 
products and services. Business 
is increasingly keen to adopt 
locally developed technology. 
Most importantly, we see growing 
international recognition of Hong 
Kong as a regional innovation and 
technology hub.

ENABLING DIVERsIFIED 
GROWTH
HKSTP is a place that brings scientists, 
technologists and entrepreneurs 
together with investors to turn dreams 
into reality. Completion of the Park’s 
Phase Three development signifies 
an important milestone for HKSTP 
and the new development is fast 
becoming an exciting home to a 
range of technology start-ups, SMEs 

and major corporations. At year-
end 2016, while we welcomed new 
tenants moving into Phase Three, 
HKSTP also launched the Park’s Stage 
One Expansion Programme. The 
aim is to increase the Park’s capacity 
to accommodate more start-ups 
spinning off from local universities 
and international research institutes. 
These entrepreneurs see Hong Kong 
as a unique place where their R&D 
projects can succeed and our goal is 
to build top-notch laboratory facilities 
and common workspaces that are 
conducive to cross-disciplinary 
collaboration.

To date, we have identified three areas 
with significant growth potential in 
Hong Kong, namely Healthy Ageing, 
Smart City and Robotics. To accelerate 
the expansion of these platforms, we 
are speeding up our IE2.0 strategic 
initiative, under which two pilot 
developments in the Tseung Kwan O 
Industrial Estate have made impressive 
progress. Upon completion, these 
two new state-of-the-art buildings 
will not only provide a real shot in 
the arm to the development of data 
management, multi-media production 
and advanced manufacturing, but  
also serve as a test model for  
re-industrialisation in Hong Kong.

CEO’s REPORT
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Meanwhile, the refurbishment of 
existing industrial buildings in the 
Tai Po Industrial Estate as multi-
storey, multi-tenant manufacturing 
buildings is also underway. This 
development is in line with our vision 
for the emergence of advanced 
manufacturing in Hong Kong, where 
the integration of artificial intelligence, 
robotics, Internet of Things and 
automation in the workflow will be 
made possible. We are dedicated to 
facilitating Hong Kong’s industrial 
players, from large corporations to 
SMEs, to launch their pilot production 
locally. We believe that location 
advantage and market-driven priorities 
will benefit their technology and 
innovation development. During the 
reporting period, one of the buildings 
was fully refurbished and we will have 
the first batch of partner companies 
settled in by year-end 2017.

DELIVERING sUCCEssFUL 
COMPANIEs
To go from innovative ideas to high-
value business solutions, start-ups 
and young SMEs need to have a 
strong rapport in terms of knowledge 
and financial resources. Last year, 
we allocated specialised manpower 
to strengthen the network and build 

connections with institutional and 
individual investors, including venture 
capital, angel investment funds, 
private equity and family offices. An 
investment team, whose responsibility 
is to generate deal flow, was created 
in the last quarter of 2016 to enable 
better alignment between technology 
companies and investors. Our efforts 
to connect high potential start-ups 
and SMEs with investors have proven 
worthwhile as the Park is becoming 
a frequent meeting point for the 
local and international financial 
communities. We can look over the 
past year and see a growing number of 
successfully completed transactions. 
As a footnote, we are excited to report 
that one of the young ICT ventures in 
the Park has surpassed the valuation 
threshold of US$1 billion, making it 
Hong Kong’s first “unicorn”.

CONTRIBUTING TO THE 
sUCCEss OF HONG KONG
HKSTP takes pride in promoting 
innovation and technology 
development to create jobs as well as 
social and economic benefits for the 
people of Hong Kong, while reinforcing 
the city’s ability to develop and 
transfer technology.

It’s clear that 2016 was an 
important year as we continued our 
transformation into a corporation 
that focuses on putting research 
into applications and accelerating 
the commercialisation process. 
Looking ahead, we will keep 
driving our strategic expansion 
initiatives to spearhead technology 
development while engaging anchor 
companies to enrich and diversify 
the technology community. We look 
forward to expanding our Incubation 
Programmes to help more incubatees 
succeed. At the same time, we 
are committed to supporting the 
companies in the Park to scale up to 
become more valuable; and we will 
generate and expand investor deal 
flow by building more partnerships 
with industry leaders. 

The team and I at HKSTP are ready 
to make every effort to contribute to 
the success of Hong Kong through 
innovation and technology. 

Albert Wong
Chief Executive Officer
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ROBUsT ECOsYsTEM
Momentum has been building for Hong Kong’s innovation 
and technology sector, following the upbeat announcement 
of development plans for the “Hong Kong-Shenzhen 
Innovation and Technology Park” in January 2017, and the 
increasing focus on developing Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macau Greater Bay Area into the global innovation and 
technology hub of Southern China.

In the 2016-17 fiscal year, Hong Kong Science and 
Technology Parks Corporation (“The Corporation” or 
“HKSTP”), at the forefront of Hong Kong’s innovation and 
technology development, continued to strengthen its 
ecosystem through a string of strategic initiatives. This 
provided a solid and fertile ground for many companies in 
Hong Kong Science Park and the Corporation’s ecosystem 
and made 2016-17 a year of growth and transformation.

HKSTP has developed a well-established ecosystem for 
helping technology companies achieve success. We saw 
increasing numbers of partnerships and collaborations 
formed between local and international technology 
companies in our ecosystem with the industry, academia 
and business community. Besides, the number of 
incubatees under our Incubation Programmes has increased 
around 12% from last year. The interactive innovation 
and technology community comprised of Science Park, 
InnoCentre and the three Industrial Estates provides end-to-
end value-added support services to technoprenuers and 
technology companies of all sizes; while Science Park has 
been serving as the showcase of cutting-edge technologies 
from all around the world.

HONG KONG sCIENCE PARK
Complete with purpose-built facilities to support the 
evolving and growing R&D and commercialisation needs of 
technology companies, Hong Kong Science Park provides 
a living laboratory that the innovative minds of Hong Kong 
and the world can leverage to turn their game-changing 
ideas into marketable products.

Enlarged footprint
During the year, the final phase of Hong Kong Science Park’s 
three-phase development was completed on time in April 
2016. This turns Science Park into a world-class innovation 
and technology hub with a total floor area of 330,000 sqm 
of office and laboratory space in 21 office buildings on the 
22-hectare picturesque waterfront site.

Having accomplished the three-phase development plan, 
with government funding support, Science Park broke 
ground again for further expansion in November 2016. At 
a projected cost of HK$4.4 billion, two purpose-built office 
buildings of fourteen and fifteen storeys are to be added 
on a 1.18 hectare site west of Science Park Phase Three. A 
further floor area of 74,000 sqm, or 22% more office space, 
will come on stream when the development is completed in 
2020.

Evolving thematic facilities
Science Park is optimising its facilities in support of the 
three key platforms identified by the Corporation, i.e. 
Smart City, Robotics and Healthy Ageing. The Corporation 
launched Robotics Garage in May 2016 and Data Studio in 
February 2017.

Robotics Garage is a dedicated “Makerspace and DIY 
fabrication destination” comprehensively equipped with 
software and equipment to let robotics entrepreneurs and 
enthusiasts build their prototypes and innovations.

Data Studio provides physical space and online platform 
where data owners and developers can co-create data 
applications. This collaborative platform is designed to 
accelerate the proof of concept technology development 
with data, promote business partnerships and contribute to 
Hong Kong’s data-driven economy.

The new facilities complement the range of laboratories and 
other facilities that can be used flexibly and creatively to 
facilitate collaboration and interaction between innovative 
minds to fuel the growth of the innovation and technology 
ecosystem within and outside Science Park.

strategic consolidation of laboratory services
To cater for the changing research needs of the companies 
in Science Park, HKSTP revamped its laboratory service 
during the year. The Corporation provides the following 
types of technical support services in the Park:

1) Biomedical Technology

1.1. Biomedical Technology Support Centre (BSC)
BSC offers state-of-the-art equipment and provides 
dedicated technical support to Park companies in 
the Biomedical Technology cluster. New equipment 
includes:

•	 Digital	Polymerase	Chain	Reaction	(PCR)	System	
for rare mutation detection

•	 High	Content	Screening	Imaging	System	for	
drug screening

•	 Bioreactor	for	mammalian	and	microbial	cell	
culture
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1.2. Healthcare Devices Innovation Hub (HDIH)
HDIH aims to provide small office and co-working 
space for device development from conception, 
prototype testing to clinical validation where 
appropriate in Hong Kong. Design and fitting 
out work of the Hub were started during the 
reporting period. It will be open to both local and 
overseas entities from universities to start-ups, 
companies from cross-disciplines (Information, 
Communication and Telecommunication, Electrical 
Engineering and Biomedical) and research 
institutes. There will be more than twenty small 
offices and over twenty floating desks in HDIH, 
which is scheduled to be launched in October 2017.

2) Engineering Laboratories

The Engineering Laboratories are accredited with 
required certifications and available to Park companies 
on time-sharing basis. The laboratories have full range 
of support from integrated circuit (“IC”) design tools to 
system-in-package packaging, analysis and testing for, 
and not limited to, electronics devices, media content 
processing, sensors enabled and Internet connected 
product R&D.  

2.1. Probe and Test Development Centre (PTDC)
Probe and Test Development Centre (PTDC) 
supports IC testing development, wafer 
probing and final testing to return merchandise 
analysis.  With the dedicated and professional 
PTDC engineering team and the state of the art 
Automated Test Equipment (ATE), PTDC is able to 
help IC design companies to verify their IC design 
as well as tune production yield by running pilot 
production.

2.2. Reliability Laboratory (RL)
The Reliability Laboratory is equipped with 
advanced test equipment to support product life 
simulation, environmental room simulation for 
semiconductor devices and electronic products. 
Experienced engineers provide reliability tests, 
reports and product qualification services for 
customers.

2.3. Integrated Circuits Failure Analysis Laboratory 
(ICFAL)
IC Failure Analysis Laboratory is equipped with 
advanced test equipment to support the product 
analysis for semiconductor devices and electronic 
products. To complete the product analysis 
capability, a 3D X-ray machine with CT was added 
for non-destructively looking inside products to 
help find and rectify problems.

2.4. 3D System in Package Laboratory
3D System-in-Package (SiP) Laboratory offers 
advance IC packaging R&D and small volume pilot 
production run to the industry.  The Lab enables 
the industry to deliver SiP packaging with high level 
of silicon integration while maintain at a low cost.

INNOCENTRE
InnoCentre is Hong Kong’s creative hub converging 
companies engaged in creativity-driven businesses – from 
product design to brand promotion, digital marketing, films, 
augmented visual displays and inter-disciplinary design 
integrated with technology.

Convenient incubation hub launched
Lion Rock 72, a dedicated space under HKSTP’s Incubation 
Programmes for encouraging creativity and innovation, was 
opened in the centrally-located InnoCentre in October 2016. 
The 10,000 sq ft co-working space is fully equipped with 
creative work benches, meeting areas and design tools. 
It also provides comprehensive 24/7 support to budding 
innovators. It is designed to be a convenient location where 
young innovators in downtown universities can access 
and take advantage of the Corporation’s pre-incubation 
and soft landing supports, in preparation for becoming 
a fully-fledged technology company. Lion Rock 72 serves 
as another development hub for local start-ups besides 
Science Park.

Activities to support innovation
To cater for the growing needs for cross-disciplinary 
collaborations at InnoCentre, the Corporation improved 
facilities in the centre in 2016-17. Three sizable meeting 
rooms ideal for training workshops, brainstorming 
sessions and private meetings were added. The centre’s 
AV equipment was upgraded and exhibition space was 
revitalised for more efficient utilisation.

With collaboration as a key theme for the past year, 
InnoCentre saw an increasing number of biomedical 
technology forums and events, large-scale talent 
development forums, education workshops for the 
e-publishing sector, as well as a range of exhibitions and 
experience workshops for the design and creative industries. 
A total of 476 events were held during the year, drawing a 
total of nearly 42,000 visitors to InnoCentre.
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INDUsTRIAL EsTATEs
Our industrial estates in Tai Po, Tseung Kwan O and Yuen 
Long have been the base for large-scale and technology-
driven industrial production in Hong Kong. During the 
year, in line with the push for re-industrialisation by the 
Government, HKSTP implemented a string of initiatives in 
Tseung Kwan O and Tai Po industrial estates to accelerate 
the development of advanced manufacturing in the city. 
The new model will enable the research and development 
results of Hong Kong’s innovation ecosystem to be 
commercialised and industrialised locally.

Levelling up manufacturing capacities
During the year, the Corporation reviewed its industrial 
estates strategy to enhance supporting functions for 
advanced manufacturing and re-industrialisation in Hong 
Kong. A surrendered site in Tai Po Industrial Estate is 
being retrofitted as Precision Manufacturing Centre. A new 
leasing mode has been adopted for this centre to position 
it as an SME manufacturing base where research results 
from Science Park can be advanced to the small batch 
production or prototype manufacturing stage.

In Tseung Kwan O Industrial Estate, work to develop the 
Data Technology Hub and Advanced Manufacturing Centre 
with HK$8.2 billion of government funding has also begun in 
2016-17, in line with the Corporation’s strategy of supporting 
advanced manufacturing.

VIBRANT PLATFORMs AND 
CLUsTERs
Encouraging progress was made in facilitating cross-
pollination of innovative ideas across the five technology 
clusters in focus – Biomedical Technology, Electronics, 
Green Technology, Information and Communications 
Technology (“ICT”), Material and Precision Engineering. We 
leverage Hong Kong’s long-established strengths in these 
five areas and facilitate their developers to turn their R&D 
achievements into much needed solutions under three 
major application platforms, namely Smart City, Healthy 
Ageing and Robotics. During the year, much effort was 
devoted to support the clusters and platforms so as to 
expand our ecosystem and realise economic and social 
benefits for Hong Kong.

sMART CITY
Hong Kong Science Park plays a pivotal role as a test bed 
and living laboratory to enable Hong Kong to realise the 
Smart City vision such as Smart Mobility, Smart Living, 
Smart Environment and Smart People through its world-
class mobile infrastructure and connectivity. As at the end of 
March 2017, there was a total of 100 companies focusing on 
Smart City related technologies and capabilities in Science 
Park.

In partnership with The Chinese University of Hong Kong 
(“CUHK”), a Smart Region between Science Park and CUHK 
has been set up that serves as a “living lab” to support and 
pilot the application of innovative Smart City solutions 
using technologies from Science Park. The collaboration 
has been adopted by the consultancy study on the Smart 
City blueprint for Hong Kong.

Drawing in key players
Technologies in the area of ICT and Green Technology are 
key to the development of Smart City, and Science Park 
saw a stronger take-up in these technological clusters in 
2016-17, with leading global market leaders in Smart City 
development setting up a base in Science Park. Among 
them, Hitachi, a market leader in Smart City solutions, 
moved in to Science Park in December 2016 and officially 
opened in March 2017. The company, known for its leading-
edge smart transportation, energy storage, water treatment, 
healthcare, robotics technology, big data and cloud 
computing, will generate ample partnership opportunities 
with Park companies for Smart City development.

Notable initiatives
Since the official launch of Data Studio in February 2017, 
more than 190 developers had registered as platform users 
and the number of data streams reached nearly 300 in 2016-
17. Data Studio provides a collaborative platform for data 
owners to publish their big data in Application Programming 
Interface (“API”) format, enabling registered developers 
to create proof-of-concept applications with the ultimate 
goal of commercialising them. Moreover, we collaborated 
with Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology Research 
Institute Company Limited to set up the Smart City 
Innovation Centre and 5G testbed which aim to provide a 
needed environment for 5G application innovations; both of 
them were launched in July 2017.

A Bitcoin ATM was set up in Science Park in September 2016 
and has been running successfully under the First@Science 
Park programme, designed to provide a real-life testing 
ground where partner companies can try out their 
technologies and get instant feedback and suggestions. 
Using blockchain technology, the initiative is intended to 
facilitate digital currency transactions to support FinTech 
in Smart City development. In November 2016, we joined 
force with Hong Kong Monetary Authority by signing a 
Memorandum of Understanding (“MoU”) to promote 
FinTech in order to accelerate the smart city development.
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CashAlgo Finance Group and HKSTP co-organised the 
second annual Inter-University Algo-Trading Contest in 
February 2017. Teams from thirteen universities in Hong 
Kong and Mainland China competed in simulated trading. 
Other than testing the Algo trading strategies designed 
and created by the contestants themselves, the event also 
helped identify talent and provided a platform to them to 
access real-life trading. As a co-organiser, the Corporation 
raised its profile in the world of security trading technology 
and opened up opportunities for similar collaborations with 
other stakeholders in the future.

Knowledge sharing
APAC Innovation Summit (“AIS”)-Sensors in August 2016 
explored future trends of sensor development that could 
revolutionise healthcare, environmental safety and lifestyle 
convenience. The event was attended by 591 people and 
featured sixty business matching sessions, as well as mini 
exhibitions for six companies and seven First@Science 
Park projects. It created an opportunity for Park companies 
to explore collaboration with overseas sensor experts to 
upgrade their capabilities in the R&D of sensors.

AIS-Smart City in September 2016 featured smart city 
experts from around the world who discussed the global 
megatrend of smart city development and the latest 
innovations in creating a smart living environment. The 
conference was attended by over 1,000 people. More 
than 240 business matching sessions were organised and 
a mini exhibition was held for fourteen companies and 
First@Science Park projects.

Innovations launched
During the year, a number of innovations were launched 
by our Park companies to help accelerate smart city 
development. Under HKSTP’s support, the launches 
of the smart city innovations have generated business 
opportunities and a notable amount of news coverage 
which benefited the growth of Park companies and the 
development of their innovations. These innovations 
include:

•	 Hong	Kong	Intelligent	Cognitive	Assessment	Platform	
(HK-iCap) developed by Cognix Limited

•	 Marlin,	an	app-based	bone	conduction	headset	
developed by Platysens Limited to help swimmers 
during training

•	 A	quick	and	budget-friendly	genetic	test	for	identifying	
the risk of diabetes onset for individuals, developed by 
GemVCare Limited

•	 Ampd	Silo,	the	zero-pollution	energy	storage	system	
developed by Ampd Energy Limited

•	 Portable	smart	remote	and	DIY	smart	switch	under	the	
Yoswit brand developed by Lincogn Technology Co. 
Limited

At the heart of smart City development are data, 
connectivity and sensors. The three core elements 
power various technologies including artificial 
intelligence, FinTech, core enterprise system, new 
generation multimedia and IoT. The objective of 
smart city platform is to drive societal benefits, 
increase productivity, enhance business outcomes 
and even reduce risks. 

HEALTHY AGEING
Supported by various kinds of technologies such as 
biomedical, Internet of Things (IoT), data analytics and 
electronic devices, the development of healthy ageing-
related innovations within our ecosystem is encouraging. 
As at the end of March 2017, 65 biomedical technology 
companies and fifteen Incu-Bio companies had anchored 
their R&D hubs in Science Park.

High-profile newcomers
A strong line-up of world-class biomedical companies, in 
areas such as stem cell research, genome studies and drug 
development, joined the Science Park ecosystem during the 
year, notably:

•	 Stockholm-based	leading	medical	university	Karolinska	
Institutet set up its first overseas offshoot, the Ming Wai 
Lau Centre for Reparative Medicine, in Science Park. The 
centre was officially opened in October 2016.

•	 Guangzhou	Institutes	of	Biomedicine	and	Health,	under	
Mainland China’s research and development authority 
the Chinese Academy of Sciences, announced plans in 
December 2016 to set up the Guangzhou Hong Kong 
Stem Cell and Regenerative Medicine Research Centre 
in Science Park.

•	 Bio-pharmaceutical	firm	Arbele	Limited	established	
its base in Science Park in May 2016, and signed 
an MoU with China Stem Cell Clinical Applications 
Centre Limited, a subsidiary of China Regenerative 
Medicine International Limited, to jointly pursue 
CAR-T immunotherapy clinical trials on liver and other 
cancers.

The presence of Karolinska Institutet, Guangzhou 
Institutes of Biomedicine and Health and an array of 
young biomedical technology companies in Science Park 
accentuates Hong Kong’s unique advantage as a strategic 
biomedical research base in the “Belt and Road” context, 
where clinical trial results are readily accepted by the health 
authorities in the US, Europe and Mainland China.
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Leading the regulatory discussion
Creating a regulatory environment conducive to biomedical 
studies in advanced cell therapies while safeguarding 
the interests of patients is key to making Hong Kong a 
biomedical innovation stronghold. The Corporation took 
an active role in leading positive dialogue for framing 
regulatory guidelines.

The Corporation steered a round-table discussion prior 
to the second Hong Kong and Guangzhou International 
Conference on Stem Cell & Regenerative Medicine on 16 
December 2016. World stem cell experts from Mainland 
China, the United States, the United Kingdom, Europe 
and Australia joined Hong Kong biomedical experts in the 
discussion. After the meeting, they recommended the way 
forward for the regulatory environment in Hong Kong, 
referencing the regulatory structures in other countries.

Healthy ageing showcase
The Smart Living@Science Park exhibition area at Science 
Park was turned into an “Ageing in Place” showroom since 
March 2017. Within the 500 sq ft space converted into a 
demo flat, more than thirty types of technology developed 
by Park companies and industry partners are showcased to 
demonstrate how an elderly citizen can comfortably enjoy 
life in his/her own home supported by the technologies. 
The exhibition also serves to provoke discussions between 
elderly care institutions and technology developers about 
how to match ongoing R&D with healthy ageing needs and 
accelerate application development.

Progress achieved by Park companies
During the year, Park companies have made prominent 
progress on healthy ageing R&D. For instance, Maz World 
Limited has moved to Science Park to commercialise its 
revolutionary ostrich antibody technology for different 
markets around the world. Having this new member to join 
our ecosystem to further develop its innovative technology 
underscores Hong Kong’s status as a biotechnology hub.

Healthy Ageing aims to bring forth useful and 
safe technologies that would benefit elderlies 
and the general public by offering preventive care 
solutions beginning from home or elderly centres. 
These solutions integrate advance technologies 
from multiple disciplines from biosensors, IoT, ICT, 
genomics based diagnostics, nano engineering 
and even new vaccines to provide early detection 
or prevention of diseases, while maintaining the 
quality of life and esteem of every individual to live 
life to the fullest. 

ROBOTICs
New initiatives in the clusters of Electronics and Material 
Precision and Engineering, especially nano-fabrication 
and advanced materials, continue to drive robotics 
development. The advancement of artificial intelligence, 
cognitive research, deep learning and human-centred 
machine learning are accelerating the development of 
robotics technologies which in turn herald more innovative 
solutions that can better serve human needs.

Having a network of Park companies involved in 
different disciplines and different stages of research and 
development, as well as a diverse range of visionary 
partners in our three Industrial Estates, the Corporation 
is in a unique position to connect start-ups, technology 
companies and industrialists to accelerate collaborative 
result-driven innovative efforts. This approach enables Hong 
Kong to effectively reap the benefits of innovation and enjoy 
economic results. During the year, the Robotics Platform 
team facilitated over twenty collaboration projects involving 
stakeholders from construction, logistics, food processing 
and digital printing industries.

strategic additions
In partnership with Park company Arrow Electronics Inc., 
Arrow Open Lab was launched in Science Park in June 2016 
to provide free use of advanced electronic lab equipment 
and facilities and, more importantly, consultation services to 
support technology companies with their R&D efforts. Arrow 
Electronics Inc. has also become a partner instrumental to 
incubating SMEs involved in robotics development and a 
key partner for Science Park’s Robotics Garage.

In early January 2017, Mainland China’s leading AI company 
Xiaoi opened its Hong Kong subsidiary in Science Park. 
The company intends to leverage Hong Kong’s multi-
cultural environment to facilitate deeper learning in order to 
enhance the sophistication of the Xiaoi Bot. The presence 
of this AI pioneer in Science Park is expected to stimulate 
adoption of AI in local businesses and enhance human-
machine interaction, as well as the development of chatbot 
and other related applications in the ecosystem.

Facilitating interaction
The Corporation continued to play an active role in bringing 
together stakeholders through different events and 
platforms to stimulate interaction and collaboration on the 
Robotics platform.

In June 2016, the Corporation facilitated the signing of an 
MoU between EPSRC UK Robotics and Autonomous Systems 
Network (UK-RAS) and the Robotics Alliance of Hong 
Kong. The partnership will promote knowledge exchange, 
facilitate proof-of-concept projects and spearhead joint R&D 
projects.
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Robotics Garage helps create and foster a “maker community”. 
It was frequented by Park companies and developers from 
the ecosystem during the year since its inauguration in May 
2016. The garage, fitted with advanced equipment such as a 
high-powered laser cutter, 3D printers, milling machine and 
more, is open to students, hobbyists as well as start-ups and 
Park companies to build their prototypes and innovations. 
Robotics Garage has enabled a number of cross-industry 
collaborative projects since its inception.

Various forums focusing on robotics or related technologies 
were held in 2016-17:

•	 AIS-Robotics	in	June	2016	was	attended	by	more	than	
900 people. In the forum, 36 global speakers discussed 
trends and insights on robotics from their research and 
examined the implications of artificial intelligence to 
the future of robotics application.

•	 Robocon	2016	held	in	June	was	joined	by	eleven	
teams from local universities and institutions. The 
“Power Shuttle” from CUHK won the contest which 
was designed to cultivate young people’s interest and 
curiosity in making use of electronic, mechanical, 
automation and information technologies to create 
intelligent robotics.

•	 AIS-Advanced	Materials	and	Printed	Electronics	
Conference in November 2016 attracted more than 260 
attendees to explore topics such as printed electronics 
applications with advanced materials, smart packaging, 
printed battery, printed memory, printed sensors and 
flexible displays, as well as the latest market trends, 
industry drivers and development of printed electronics 
devices.

Propelling industry adoption
HKSTP endeavoured to steer successful cases of automation 
and robotics application during the year, especially for 
those solutions that could support “3D” (Dangerous, Dull, 
Dirty) tasks in the society.

Construction: An automatic welding robot has been 
developed to simplify the process and tackle the difficulties 
for onsite welding, make it easier for workers to complete 
the task within a shorter period of time.

Factory Automation: Vogue Laundry Service Limited, our 
partner company from Yuen Long Industrial Estate has 
adopted a robotics solution with the agility for towel folding 
and sterilising. It helps to re-direct the workforce to other 
non-tedious tasks.

Logistics: Smart Warehouse Solution developed by 
RV Automation Technology Company Limited is able 
to automate the logistics flow for material handling 
in a warehouse. It works together with a warehouse 
management system to optimise warehousing efficiency.

Artificial intelligence, which is supported by deep 
learning and autonomous actuation, would be the 
core cluster technology to enable the application 
of Robotics. The future’s Robotics solution will 
perform four basic tasks namely “sense, Analysis, 
Decide and React” through analysing the data 
collected from sensors and cognitive deep learning; 
different kinds of human-machine interaction as 
well as machine-machine interaction will thus be 
generated.

EFFECTIVE INCUBATION
Grooming promising start-ups is a key strategy to keep our 
ecosystem growing. The Corporation has been operating 
effective Incubation Programmes to support start-ups and 
help them turn their innovative ideas into commercially 
viable products.

ExTENsIVE GUIDANCE AND sUPPORT
The Incubation Programmes comprise Incu-App, Incu-
Tech and Incu-Bio, tailored for start-ups in the fields of 
technology, web and mobile technology and biotechnology. 
Through the programmes, the Corporation offers 
incubatees access to office space and facilities, technical 
and management assistance, promotion and development 
assistance, and business support and financial aid 
packages. Coaching in all aspects, from business knowledge 
sharing to funding sourcing and commercialisation of R&D 
results, is designed to help incubatees make their business 
a success. As at end of March 2017, there were 267 start-ups 
in the Incubation Programmes. Since the introduction of the 
programmes in 1992, the Corporation has incubated 470 
start-ups with more than 70% of them still in business.

FROM PRE-INCUBATION TO 
ACCELERATION
To strengthen the incubation strategy, pre-incubation for 
budding technology talent and acceleration programmes 
for exceptional incubatees have also been put in place 
during the year.

Pre-incubation
Launched in October 2016, LionRock 72 is a co-working 
space that serves to support the incubatees, and lets 
aspiring technology talent access the Corporation’s full 
range of pre-incubation and soft-landing business support 
services in a downtown location. It is designed to encourage 
young talent still in universities to gather and stay on the 
Corporation’s radar on the road to becoming a start-up 
business.
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Joint Incubation
The Joint Incubation programme, also inaugurated in 
October 2016 in conjunction with three local universities, 
namely Hong Kong Baptist University, City University of Hong 
Kong and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, identifies 
high-potential projects on campus and admits them into 
the Corporation’s Incubation Programmes to access the 
Corporation’s and the universities’ R&D premises and value-
added services to speed up their technology research.

TechnoPreneur Partnership Programme (TPP)
TPP pools the academia of the six local universities, 
accelerators and key players in the start-up community to 
share their collective knowledge and market insights with 
start-ups. TPP offers investment support services, access to 
Soft Landing Centre and laboratory facilities, coaching and 
training, promotion and community outreach and business 
development, paving the way for start-ups to qualify for 
the Corporation’s Incubation Programmes. During the 
year, HKSTP provided not only venue support to events co-
organised with our TPP partners, we also worked together 
in a hackathon event, an exhibition at the Hong Kong 
Convention and Exhibition Centre and the “Career Expo at 
Science Park 2016”. As well, our TPP partners have helped 
us reach out to a much wider group of entrepreneurs, 
encouraging them to join our various technology start-up 
supporting events, services and competitions.

Leading Enterprises Acceleration Programme (LEAP@HK)
High-potential Park companies and incubatee graduates 
that have viable innovative technology ready for market 
or show potential to develop regionally or globally can 
apply to join LEAP@HK. The Corporation and industry 
experts in various fields provide tailor-made support 
on business and corporate development, as well as a 
greater degree of assistance in managing their growth, 
financing and governance. In 2016-17, one intake of eight 
acceleratees were admitted to the programme, bringing the 
accumulative total of acceleratees in the programme to 22 
since its inauguration in 2014.

sOURCING FUNDING
The Corporation is instrumental in connecting start-ups 
with investors and funding channels through a range of 
formulated programmes and special events. In 2016-17, 
the Corporation strengthened the start-up investment 
ecosystem through growing the angel investment 
community and developing closer collaboration with 
various institutional investors. These efforts expanded the 
investment pipelines for the companies in Science Park. The 
amount of capital raised by incubatees and graduates in 
2016-17 was more than HK$332 million for 22 cases.

Corporate Venture Fund (CVF)
Launched in July 2015, CVF provides seed to Series A 
funding to high-potential start-ups to take their ideas to 
the next stage of development. The co-investment mode of 
CVF serves to attract angel investors and venture capitalists 
to invest in start-ups that have received initial CVF funding 
from the Corporation, as it is perceived as a vote of 
confidence in their technology. In 2016-17, the number of 
engaged companies since the fund’s inception increased to 
74, from 55 in the previous year. Five deals were approved 
up to date while the others were in different stages of the 
approval process.

Elevator World Tour™
The first Asia stop of global start-up event Elevator World 
Tour™ was brought to Hong Kong for the first time in 2016 by 
the Corporation in partnership with organiser STARTUPFEST. 
In the event, 100 start-ups pitched individually to a panel 
of investors and experts within a sixty-second ride up 
the elevator of Hong Kong’s tallest building International 
Commercial Centre to vie for the top prize of investment 
funding worth up to US$120,000. Business matching 
sessions were also organised during the event to help start-
ups connect with potential investors. The event received 
over 300 applications. The participants were from Hong 
Kong and other places including Mainland China, Taiwan, 
the United States, Canada and France.

Angel Investment Group
In November 2016, the Corporation announced angel 
investment partnerships with three leading investment 
organisations in Mainland China – Hong Kong Chamber 
of Commerce in China, Beijing P.A. Fortune Investment 
Management Co. Ltd. and Innovation Angel Funds. The 
partners will present more financing and opportunities 
to support start-ups. The three partners set aside 
HK$50 million for investment, giving priority to projects 
recommended by the Corporation. Other than funding, 
the recommended start-ups also receive joint incubation 
support, one-on-one mentorship as well as business and 
investment matching.

VALUE-ADDED sERVICEs
As the statutory body tasked to drive Hong Kong’s 
innovation and technology development, the Corporation 
continues to refine a comprehensive range of value-
added services for partner companies, incubatees and 
other stakeholders of the ecosystem. The services provide 
market intelligence, expand funding channels, offer a test 
bed and showcase for technologies developed by the 
ecosystem, and facilitate networking platforms for business 
development by leveraging the synergy of the ecosystem.
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MARKET INTELLIGENCE
Making good use of the Corporation’s local and global 
connections, information knowledge sharing forums are 
staged regularly featuring a stellar cast of authoritative 
speakers, academia, decision makers and thought leaders 
keen to impart their professional insights. Discussion topics 
are carefully chosen to provide global industry updates on 
the key technology platforms and clusters championed by 
the Corporation.

APAC Innovation summit (AIs)
AIS 2016 cast the spotlight on:
•	 Internet	of	Things,	in	April	2016,
•	 Robotics,	in	June	2016,
•	 Sensors,	in	August	2016,
•	 Smart	City,	in	September	2016,	and
•	 Advanced	materials	and	printed	electronics,	in	

November 2016.

In 2016-17, the events drew a total attendance of more than 
4,000 local and overseas executives as well as support from 
130 renowned speakers and more than 100 partners from 
universities, R&D centres, media agencies and industry 
associations.

stem Cell and Regenerative Medicine Conference
The conference progressed to the second edition in 
December 2016. Co-hosted by the Corporation and 
Guangzhou Institute of Biomedicine and Health, the event 
brought together the world’s leading experts on stem cell 
to explore how Hong Kong’s regulatory landscape and 
wide acceptance of Hong Kong’s clinical trial data can be 
leveraged to accelerate biomedical R&D projects. The 2016 
event was attended by over 300 participants from Hong 
Kong, Mainland China and overseas.

ExPAND FUNDING CHANNELs
Connecting partner companies and incubatees with 
investors and funding channels is a key manifestation of the 
Corporation’s role as a super-connector. Business matching 
and networking gatherings with investors are arranged 
in all possible settings to maximise the opportunities for 
technology companies to access different funding channels. 
The Corporation has also formed various partnerships to 
channel investment into the ecosystem.

Angel Investment Matching
The Hong Kong Business Angel Network (HKBAN) was 
formed in 2010. Through collaborating with HKBAN, the 
Corporation organises Investment Matching Gatherings 
where entrepreneurs from partner companies present their 
business plans to over eighty selected angel investors. A 
total of twelve gatherings were held in 2016-17.

science Park Venture Partnership Programme
Science Park Venture Partnership Programme connects 
Science Park companies ready to pitch for investment with 
some of the world’s top venture capital firms. Programme 
partners include renowned venture capital firms and 
corporate ventures. Up to end of March 2017, there were 
over fifty active investor partners under the programme.

Technologies from science Park
Through the Technologies from Science Park programme, 
the Corporation arranges business sharing, product 
demonstration sessions and one-on-one business matching 
between companies at Science Park and enterprises. Since 
launching this programme in March 2015, HKSTP has built 
partnerships with nineteen leading business entities in 
Hong Kong. They have met with 200 technology companies 
from Science Park to identify locally-grown solutions to 
enhance all aspects of business efficiency.

These programmes complement Corporate Venture Fund, 
TechnoPreneur Partnership Programme and business 
matching sessions organised in conjunction with industry 
conferences and events designed to connect partner 
companies and incubatees with potential investors and 
commercialisation partners.

TEsTBED AND sHOWCAsEs
One of the key benefits of conducting R&D at Science Park, 
which has a working population of over 13,000 people as at 
the end of March 2017, is the opportunity to test innovative 
ideas and concepts in a controlled real-life setting and 
showcase them in the city’s innovation and technology hub.

Three “Living Labs” were initiated in Science Park in 2016-
17:

•	 Robotics	Garage,	opened	in	May	2016	for	enabling	
robotics R&D, was used by fifty Park companies and 
facilitated more than 200 projects up to end of March 
2017.

•	 Smart	Living@Science	Park,	launched	in	December	
2015, staged exhibitions of different themes showcasing 
practical home applications of technologies developed 
by partner companies and incubatees. The exhibition 
attracted more than 34,000 visitors in Phase One and 
Phase Two, and various exhibits were selected for larger 
scale exhibitions such as InnoTech Expo and Global 
Sources Mobile Electronics Show.

•	 Data	Studio	drew	190	registered	developers	and	close	
to 300 data streams since it was launched.
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The First@Science Park programme lets Park companies 
use Science Park as a live testing ground to get instant 
feedback and suggestions for their latest concepts. During 
the year, 35 cases were completed, among them were 
notable technologies such as the Bitcoin Machine, wireless 
charging table, Automatic Retinal Image Analyser, crowd-
tracking solution and WIZOR X-Spatial 4D Magic Sound.

BUsINEss DEVELOPMENT
The Corporation creates opportunities for partner 
companies, incubatees, academia, business 
owners, investors and other stakeholders to mingle 
and network, through local industry engagement 
initiatives such as Technologies from Science Park and 
IndustryConnect@Science Park, and Park’s networking 
platforms such as TecONE and SPARK. The Corporation also 
leads delegations to major innovation and technology trade 
shows in Hong Kong or overseas for local companies to gain 
wider visibility.

Local connections
IndustryConnect@Science Park facilitates technological 
and industrial collaboration among partner companies, 
incubatees and relevant industries. In 2016-17, we organised 
seventeen sessions joined by 654 members from 31 trade 
and industry associations and 126 partner companies 
and incubatees. Through these activities, 123 potential 
collaborations were generated and six technology solutions 
were adopted by various industries.

Science Park’s one-stop service centre TecONE connects 
partner companies with all of the Corporation’s resources. 
In 2016-17, over 8,200 visitors made use of TecOne facilities 
and services.

Science Park’s community members scheme SPARK builds 
a dynamic community through recreational activities, 
seminars and other networking opportunities. During 
the reporting period, SPARK engaged its more than 6,600 
members in a wide range of relationship building activities 
and services.

Exposure in high-profile trade shows
In 2016-17, the Corporation led delegations of partner 
companies and incubatees to join a range of important 
trade shows, including:

•	 Mobile	World	Congress	2017	in	February,	in	which	
eleven Park companies joined the Hong Kong Pavilion 
co-organised for the first time by the Corporation, Hong 
Kong Trade Development Council and InvestHK. Six 
participants gained promising business opportunities 
and leads from the event.

•	 CES®	in	January	2017	in	the	United	States,	joined	by	
eight partner companies and nine incubatees, who 
collectively received close to 1,000 serious business 
enquiries and more than twenty media interviews. 
Three companies also won Innovation Awards in the 
show.

Mainland collaboration
During the year, HKSTP collaborated closely with various 
national industrialisation bases and partners in Mainland 
China to facilitate the innovation and technology 
development in Hong Kong. We partnered with Hong 
Kong University of Science and Technology to organise a 
business matching session for our partner companies and 
incubatees to establish connection with Yingli Green Energy 
Holding Company Limited, one of the world’s leading solar 
panel manufacturers. Besides, we supported the growth 
of technopreneurs by collaborating with incubators from 
Mainland China, which included being one of the  
co-organisers of the Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong 
Innovative Start-Ups Competition.

The Corporation also leveraged the extensive network of 
its partners in Mainland China to accelerate the business 
development of technology companies. During the year, 
we had built connections for over sixty projects with our 
Mainland China partners, including Beijing Institute of 
Collaborative Innovation and Midea Group Co., Ltd.

International collaboration
During the reporting period, eighteen international 
companies from eleven countries moved into Science 
Park. Also, fifty international delegations from over twenty 
countries visited HKSTP over the year. Through these visits, 
we conducted high-level dialogue with relevant government 
representatives, created visibility in the international arena 
and built connections to generate more collaboration 
opportunities with other countries. Besides, in May 2016, we 
entered into strategic partnership with Medical Valley EMN 
from Germany, Hong Kong Biotechnology Organization 
and Hong Kong Medical & Healthcare Device Industries 
Association Limited to enhance cross-country collaboration 
in the biomedical industry.

ENGAGEMENT AND OUTREACH
The Corporation is committed to engaging the community 
to communicate the economic significance and the social 
benefits of building a strong innovation and technology 
ecosystem. An extensive programme for grooming aspiring 
STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics) 
talent and reaching out to the community was implemented 
in 2016-17.
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BUILD sTEM TALENT POOL
Growing a sustainable talent supply for the innovation and 
technology sector was a key objective for the Corporation 
in 2016-17. This was accomplished through promoting 
employment opportunities and presenting local and 
overseas internship opportunities to young talent.

To gauge the manpower needs of the innovation and 
technology sector, the Corporation keeps track of high-value 
R&D projects among partner companies and incubatees. 
As at the end of March 2017, among the total working 
population of over 13,000 people in Science Park, nearly 
8,500 R&D personnel are developing technologies across 
our five technology clusters.

The Career Expo at Science Park held in February 2017 
pooled around 1,000 job opportunities in the innovation 
and technology field. The jobs, offered by over 100 local and 
overseas companies, were open to fresh university graduates 
or people with less than ten years of work experience. Expo 
visitors also learnt from Incubation Programmes graduates 
about how to embark on entrepreneurship, and had the 
opportunity to join a “CEO Shadowing Programme”, through 
which they could observe and learn from C-level executives 
over three days. In conjunction with Career Expo, the Talent 
Pool website was launched in February 2017. The website 
features additional functionality to let job seekers explore 
all career opportunities at Science Park on an ongoing 
basis.

The Corporation has achieved great success with 
Vibrant Science Academy (VSA) and Science Explorer. 
The programmes are designed to instil interest in STEM 
subjects in young people through fun games, workshops 
and experiments, with a total attendance of close to 50,000 
during the reporting period. A survey of more than 1,400 
interviewees, who were mainly parents of children joined 
STEM-themed events under the VSA platform, indicated 
that over 98% of respondents ranked STEM knowledge as 
important and were positive about taking STEM subjects in 
school.

During the year, the Corporation also took part in various 
programmes to groom STEM interest in young people. Such 
activities included:

•	 A	half-day	programme	for	teaching	staff	at	Youth	
College on 6 January 2017, attended by 140 people;

•	 Co-organising	ROBOFEST	Hong	Kong	2017,	a	robot	
competition for school students, with Robot Institute of 
Hong Kong in February 2017. The event attracted 540 
participants;

•	 A	half-day	professional	development	programme	for	
teachers about guiding extra-curricular activities on 
innovation and technology. The event was organised 
by Hong Kong Extra-curricular Activities Masters’ 
Association on 16 March 2017 and was attended by fifty 
people;

•	 Partnering	Hong	Kong	University	of	Science	and	
Technology and The Institute of Electrical and 
Electronics Engineers to host the “IEEE Electronic 
Endeavour Match” training day on 18 March 2017. The 
event was attended by twenty people.

Internship programmes
The Corporation actively works with partner companies and 
incubatees to provide internship opportunities for university 
students. It has been a win-win arrangement for employers 
and students as companies gain fresh thinking from young 
talent and identify technology talent at an early stage, while 
students gain valuable exposure in a real work environment.

As at the end of March 2017, a total of 285 internships were 
arranged with partner companies and incubatees. Overseas 
internship opportunities were also explored with universities 
in the US, Australia and Sweden, while 115 internship places 
were arranged with eleven Mainland China companies.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
“City Challenge – Bridge to a Smarter City” held in 2016 
achieved the dual purpose of grooming STEM talent and 
inspiring the community with the ideals of bettering the city 
we live in through innovation and technology. More than 520 
teams from Primary, Intermediate and Open Groups, with 
participants aged from 6 to 76, submitted more than 3,400 
entries presenting their novel ideas for tackling one of five 
smart city challenges – transportation, energy management, 
waste management, public services digitisation and smart 
home living. Participants in the Intermediate and Open 
Groups were offered a series of training courses on product 
design, application development and fabrication skills 
with mentorship from technology professionals. Extensive 
support from more than fifty corporate partners and the 
public sector ensured the City Challenge achieved the goal 
of inspiring Hong Kong citizens to utilise their creativity to 
work towards Hong Kong’s smart city transformation.
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THE BOARD
THE HONOURABLE MRs. FANNY LAW FAN CHIU FUN, GBM, GBs, JP

MEMBER
HKsAR ExECUTIVE COUNCIL

Mrs. Fanny Law is a HKSAR Deputy to the 12th National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China, a Member of 
the HKSAR Executive Council, a Special Advisor to the China-US Exchange Foundation, a HK advisor of China Development 
Bank, and an advisor of Hong Kong X-Tech Startup Platform. Mrs. Law is also an External Director of China Resources 
(Holdings) Co. Ltd. and an Independent Non-executive Director of CLP Holdings Limited, China Unicom (Hong Kong) 
Limited, DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited and Nameson Holdings Limited.

Mrs. Law graduated from the University of Hong Kong with an Honours degree in Science, and in 2009 was named an 
outstanding alumnus of the Science Faculty. She also holds a Master degree in Public Administration from Harvard 
University and a Master degree in Education from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mrs. Law had been an Administrative Officer of the government of the HKSAR for 30 years. Her services straddle a wide 
range of public policies, including medical and health, economic services, housing, land and planning, home affairs, social 
welfare, civil service, transport, labour and manpower planning, education and anti-corruption.

MR. CHEUK WING-HING, JP

PERMANENT sECRETARY FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY*
INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY BUREAU

Mr. Cheuk Wing-hing is the Permanent Secretary for Innovation and Technology of the Government of the Hong Kong 
Special Administrative Region. The Innovation and Technology Bureau was established in November 2015.

Graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1981, Mr. Cheuk entered the Government as an Inspector of Police in the 
same year. He joined the Administrative Service in 1984 and was promoted to his present rank of Administrative Officer Staff 
Grade A1 in 2017.

Mr. Cheuk is a veteran civil servant and has served in various bureau and departments. He was the Commissioner for 
Labour from end 2010 to early 2014 and Chairman of the 2014 Administrative Officer Recruitment Board from February to 
March 2014. Before taking up the Permanent Secretary post, he was the Director of Administration and Development in the 
Department of Justice.

* Appointed on an ex-officio basis.

DR. sUNNY CHAI NGAI CHIU
MANAGING DIRECTOR
FOOK TIN GROUP HOLDINGs LIMITED

Dr. Sunny Chai is the Group Managing Director of Fook Tin Group Holdings Limited. He graduated with a Bachelor of Science 
from Rochester Institute of Technology (USA), and was awarded the Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong in 2004. Dr. Chai 
completed an Executive MBA program (EMBA) at the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2007. In 2010, Dr. Chai was awarded 
the Doctor of Engineering (EngD) from the City University of Hong Kong.

Dr. Chai currently contributes to society by participating in:

1. Board Chairman of Hong Kong R&D Centre for Logistics and Supply Chain Management Enabling Technologies
2. Chairman of Federation of Hong Kong Industries, Group 25 (HKITIC)
3. Consultative & Advisory Panel Member of Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Ltd
4. Member of Copyright Tribunal
5. Member of Enterprise Support Scheme (ESS) Assessment Panel
6. Member of Professional Services Advancement Support Scheme (PASS)
7. Member of Advisory Committee on Review of the Patent System
8. Chairman of Departmental Advisory Committee of Industrial and Systems Engineering Department (PolyU)
9. Member of Departmental Advisory Committee of Systems Engineering and Engineering Management Department (CityU)
10. Member of Outward Bound Hong Kong
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MR. OWEN CHAN (REsIGNED WITH EFFECT FROM 4 MAY 2017)

CHAIRMAN & CEO
CIsCO GREATER CHINA

Owen Chan is Chairman and CEO, Cisco Greater China. With more than 30 years of management experience in the Asia 
Pacific region and extensive knowledge of the Greater China market, Mr. Chan is responsible for developing and executing 
Cisco’s overall business strategy in Greater China.

Mr. Chan joined Cisco in 1999 as Vice President of the Cisco Services Group, Asia Pacific and Japan, and has since assumed 
leadership roles including Vice President of Cisco Asia Pacific Operations, Senior Vice President of Cisco Asia Pacific 
Operations as well as President and CEO of the Greater China Operations.

Prior to joining Cisco, Mr. Chan spent over 12 years with General Electric, where his last position was President of 
Information Services, Asia Pacific and Japan Operations.

MR. RAYMOND CHENG sIU HONG
GROUP GENERAL MANAGER & CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER, AsIA PACIFIC
THE HONGKONG AND sHANGHAI BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED

Mr. Raymond Cheng is the Group General Manager & Chief Operating Officer for The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking 
Corporation Limited (HSBC Asia Pacific). He is an Executive Committee Member of HSBC Asia Pacific, assuming the overall 
responsibility of Information Technology, Operations and Professional Services which include Corporate Real Estate and 
Procurement for the 20 markets in Asia Pacific region.

Mr. Cheng joined HSBC in Hong Kong right after coming back from Netherlands and worked in Technology. Since then, he 
has worked in and led different IT functions and various projects both locally and globally. A large part of his experience is 
delivering new technology for the Bank. Apart from working in Hong Kong, Mr. Cheng has spent five years in HSBC North 
America.

Mr. Cheng is the Chairman of HSBC Technology & Services (China) Limited, HSBC Electronic Data Processing (Guangdong) 
Limited, Hong Kong Interbank Clearing Limited and HKICL Services Limited. He is also a Director of HSBC Bank (Vietnam) 
Limited, Hong Kong Note Printing Limited and Hong Kong Institute for IT Professional Certification. In addition, he is the 
Independent Manager on School Board for Shun Tak Fraternal Association Yung Yau College.

Ms. CORDELIA CHUNG (APPOINTED ON 1 JULY 2017)

MANAGING DIRECTOR
LIxIL CORPORATION

Cordelia Chung is Managing Director of LIXIL Corporation responsible for its corporate strategy in Asia. LIXIL is a global 
leader in building materials and home solutions.

Prior to LIXIL, Ms Chung held a wide range of senior leadership roles in her 24 years with IBM including Regional General 
Manager for IBM ASEAN, General Manager for IBM China/Hong Kong Ltd, and as chief legal counsel across Asia. She was 
among the first Asian executives to serve on IBM Chairman’s Strategy Committee, setting strategic directions for IBM 
globally.

Ms Chung devotes significant time for public service. She is trustee of Singapore University of Technology and Design; 
member of HK Government’s Research Grants Council, Personal Data (Privacy) Advisory Committee and member of China 
Dalian CPCC. She also served as council member of HK Polytechnic University, Court member of HK University of Science 
and Technology, and on HK Government’s Digital 21 Strategy Advisory Committee.
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MR. KENT HO CHING TAK (APPOINTED ON 1 JULY 2017)

FOUNDER AND MANAGING PARTNER
sPECTRUM 28

ExECUTIVE DIRECTOR
sING TAO NEWs CORPORATION LIMITED

Kent Ho is a veteran Silicon Valley investor and innovation advocate. He has co-founded two VC firms, most recently 
Spectrum 28, which invests in early-stage companies that leverage data to transform industries. Kent is an investor in 
unicorns such as Palantir, Evernote, Coupang, JD.com and Zoom. Based between Silicon Valley and Hong Kong, Kent is 
the youngest person ever to be conferred the title of Honorary Trustee by Peking University. He is also a member of the 
Hong Kong Trade Development Council’s Innovation and Technology Advisory Committee. He holds an MBA from Stanford 
Graduate School of Business and a BA in Economics from Duke University.

MIss NIsA LEUNG WING-YU, JP (RETIRED ON 30 JUNE 2017)

MANAGING PARTNER
QIMING VENTURE PARTNERs

Nisa Leung is a Managing Partner of Qiming Venture Partners and leading its health care investments. Qiming Venture 
Partners is a leading investment firm in China which currently manages five USD funds and four RMB funds with over USD 2.75 
billion in assets and investment in over 210 companies.

Nisa currently sits on the board of Gan & Lee Pharmaceutical, Zai Laboratories, Novast Pharmaceuticals, Nurotron, Venus 
MedTech, Goodwill Information Technology, dMed, LIH Rehabilitation, CanSino Biotechnology and Berry Genomics. She 
also oversees Qiming’s investments in Acea Biosciences, Aeonmed Medical, Alltech Medical, CITIC Pharmaceuticals (acquired 
by Shanghai Pharmaceutical HKSE: 02607), Crown Bioscience (GTSM: 6554), Origene Technologies (acquired by VCAN Bio 
SHSE: 600645), Richen, VR Medical, Wuxi Leiming, Chain Medical Labs, Suzhou Qiagen and New Horizon Bio.

Nisa earned her MBA from Stanford Graduate School of Business and a BS from Cornell University. She is currently visiting 
lecturer at Harvard Law School, a founding member and Vice Chair of PhIRDA (China Pharmaceutical Innovation and 
Research Development Association) Innovation Drug Investment Committee, member of Committee on Innovation, 
Technology and Re-industrialisation, advisor of Our Hong Kong Foundation, council member of HKUST Business School 
and serves on the Board of Governors of the Hotchkiss School.

IR DR. HONOURABLE LO WAI KWOK, sBs, MH, JP, CENG, FHKIE, FIET, FIMECHE, FHKENG, RPE

LEGIsLATIVE COUNCIL MEMBER

Ir Dr. Hon. Lo Wai Kwok is Member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, representing 
the Engineering Functional Constituency. He is currently serving as Chairman of the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency, 
member of the Housing Authority, the Hospital Authority, and the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority. He was Sha 
Tin District Councilor for many years. His expertise and areas of service cover infrastructure, town planning, environment, 
housing, technology, industry, education and community service, etc.

Dr. Lo has over 30 years of experience in engineering, industrial management, technology innovation and market 
development. He has also worked as Asia-Pacific president of multinational technology group, and deputy chairman of 
listed electronics enterprise, and was awarded “Ten Outstanding Young Persons” and “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong 
Kong” in 1992. He was President of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers in 2007/08. He is honorary fellow and visiting 
professor of a number of tertiary education institutes.
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MR. THEODORE MA HENG
MANAGING DIRECTOR
MABELLE JEWELLERY CO. LTD

Mr. Theodore Ma is a Managing Director of MaBelle Jewellery Co. Ltd leading its overseas and online retailing business. 
Operating across 22 different online stores and platforms since 2004, MaBelle Jewellery has been serving customers in 76 
countries and 400 cities around the world.

Mr. Ma is also the Co-founder of CoCoon, one of largest entrepreneurship communities in Hong Kong with over 1,200 
members and alumni. CoCoon helps to bridge the business innovation community with the startup community through 
hosting startup events, developing entrepreneurship education and angel investing. Through its signature monthly event, 
CoCoon Pitch Night, over 200 startups have been featured and collectively raised over HK$640M of angel funding since 2013.

Mr. Ma earned his Masters in E-Commerce & Internet Computing from the University of Hong Kong and his BA in 
Communication with a minor in Computer Science from Stanford University. He is the Director of the Stanford Club of 
Hong Kong, Advisor of Our Hong Kong Foundation, Member of the HKTDC Jewellery Advisory Committee, Member of the 
Admission Panel of LEAP@HK Programme of the HKSTPC, and Member of the Careers Advisory Board of The University of 
Hong Kong.

DR. KIM MAK KIN WAH, BBs, JP (APPOINTED ON 1 JULY 2017)

PREsIDENT
CARITAs INsTITUTE OF HIGHER EDUCATION AND CARITAs BIANCHI COLLEGE OF CAREERs

Kim is currently President of Caritas Institute of Higher Education and Caritas Bianchi College of Careers, leading the mission 
towards establishing St. Francis University. Kim holds the degrees of Ph.D. and M.Phil. from Cambridge University, MBA 
from City University London, and Bachelor of Engineering (1st Class Honours) from University of Western Australia. Kim also 
holds the professional qualifications of Chartered Engineer, Member of the Institution of Civil Engineers, and Member of the 
Institute of Marine Engineering, Science & Technology.

Kim won the Director of the Year Awards of the Institute of Directors in two consecutive years. He has a combination of 
success in establishing strategies and business models for corporations and NGOs, working with government, legislators 
and the media, and leading major projects in Europe, Australia, Hong Kong and Mainland China.

Active in community services, Kim has been awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star, and is a Justice of Peace.

MR. JOsEPH NGAI
sENIOR PARTNER AND MANAGING PARTNER, GREATER CHINA
MCKINsEY & COMPANY

Joe Ngai is currently a Senior Partner and the Managing Partner of McKinsey Greater China. He serves many of the region’s 
leading banks, insurers and conglomerates on business transformation and digitalization. He is the co-author of two 
editions of “Life Insurance in Asia”, and frequently speaks on financial, management, youth and social enterprise topics.

Joe serves on various Government advisory committees, including the Financial Services Development Council, the Hong 
Kong Scholarship for Excellence Scheme, and the Financial Infrastructure Sub-Committee of the Hong Kong Monetary 
Authority.

He is passionate about community service. He is currently the Chairman of DiamondCab, an award-winning social 
enterprise focusing on barrier-free taxi services, Director of Diocesan Boys’ School Foundation, Regional Association 
President of Phillips Exeter Academy, and previously, President of Harvard Business School Association of Hong Kong.

Joe grew up in Hong Kong, where he studied at Diocesan Boys’ School. He received his AB, JD and MBA from Harvard 
University.
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PROFEssOR sHYY WEI
ExECUTIVE VICE-PREsIDENT AND PROVOsT
THE HONG KONG UNIVERsITY OF sCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY

Professor Wei Shyy (or SHYY Wei) is currently the Executive Vice-President and Provost cum Chair Professor of Mechanical & 
Aerospace Engineering at the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

Professor Shyy obtained his BS degree from Tsing-Hua University, Taiwan, and his MSE and PhD degrees in Aerospace 
Engineering from University of Michigan. He was Research Scientist at the General Electric Research and Development 
Center in New York from 1983 to 1988. From 1988 to 2004, he was on the faculty of University of Florida. From 2005 to 
2010, he was Clarence L. “Kelly” Johnson Collegiate Professor and Chairman of Department of Aerospace Engineering at 
University of Michigan.

Professor Shyy is a Fellow of American Institute of Aeronautics and Astronautics (AIAA) and American Society of Mechanical 
Engineers (ASME). Among his many awards are AIAA 2003 Pendray Aerospace Literature Award, ASME 2005 Heat Transfer 
Memorial Award, and Engineers’ Council (Sherman Oaks, California) 2009 Distinguished Educator Award etc. He is also a 
member of University Grants Committee (Hong Kong) and Board of Governors of Technion – Israel Institute of Technology.

MR. RICHARD sUN PO YUEN, JP, CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

PARTNER
PRICEWATERHOUsECOOPERs

Mr. Richard Sun is a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers and has been with PricewaterhouseCoopers for over 25 years. Mr. 
Sun has extensive experience in auditing, initial public offering exercises, mergers and acquisitions, equity transactions and 
business advisory services. He has a broad range of Hong Kong and PRC based (H shares and red chips) clients.

Mr. Sun served as a member of the Listing Committee of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from 2009-2014. He was previously 
a director of the Estate Agents Authority, where he was a member of the Disciplinary Committee and the Finance and 
Strategic Development Committee and previously a director of the Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology Research 
Institute Company Limited, where he was Chairman of the Audit Committee. He is also a past Chairman and Executive 
Committee member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, Hong Kong where he continues as a member of 
the Community Services Committee.

PROFEssOR PAUL TAM KWONG-HANG, JP (RETIRED ON 30 JUNE 2017)

PROVOsT AND DEPUTY VICE-CHANCELLOR
THE UNIVERsITY OF HONG KONG

Professor Paul Tam is the Provost and Deputy Vice-Chancellor, and Director of Dr Li Dak-Sum Research Centre in 
Regenerative Medicine at the University of Hong Kong (HKU). Professor Tam graduated from HKU in 1976, and worked in the 
Department of Surgery until 1986. He was Senior Lecturer at the University of Liverpool in 1986-90, and Reader and Director 
of Paediatric Surgery at the University of Oxford in 1990-96. He has been Chair of Paediatric Surgery at HKU since 1996 and 
succeeded Li Shu-Pui Professorship in Surgery in 2013.

Professor Tam is a well-known surgeon-scientist. His research group has published extensively in genomics, stem 
cell, immunology and Chinese medicine, and holds several patents. He has served on various local and international 
associations of the medical profession, as well as the editorial boards of several international journals.

Professor Tam has received numerous awards including the British Association of Pediatric Surgery Prize, the Honorary 
Fellow of the American Surgical Association, and has been awarded the 2017 Denis Browne Gold Medal – the highest award 
of the British Association of Paediatric Surgeons at the 64th BAPS Congress/IPEG Meeting which was held in London in July 
2017.
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Professor Tsui Lap Chee, GBM, GBs, JP

FOUNDING PREsIDENT
THE ACADEMY OF sCIENCEs OF HONG KONG

Professor Lap-Chee Tsui is the Founding President of the Academy of Sciences of Hong Kong. He is also President of 
Victor and William Fung Foundation, Hong Kong, and Director of Qiushi Academy for Advanced Studies and Master of the 
Residential College of International Campus, Zhejiang University, China. He was the immediate-past Vice Chancellor of 
The University of Hong Kong and, prior to which, he was Geneticist-in-Chief at the Hospital for Sick Children in Toronto and 
University Professor at University of Toronto, Canada.

Professor Tsui received his Bachelor and Master degrees from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and his PhD from 
University of Pittsburgh in 1979. He is world renowned for his research work in human genetics and genomics, notably 
the identification of the gene for Cystic Fibrosis in 1989 and, later, other human genetic diseases while conducting a 
comprehensive characterization of human chromosome 7.

Dr. Tsui has over 300 peer-reviewed scientific publications and 65 invited book chapters. He is the recipient of many national 
and international prizes, and a Fellow of Royal Society of Canada, Fellow of Royal Society of London, Fellow of Academia 
Sinica, Foreign Associate of the National Academy of Sciences USA, Foreign Member of the Chinese Academy of Sciences, 
and Laureate of the Canadian Medical Hall of Fame. He has received many awards over the years, including 15 honorary 
doctoral degrees from universities around the world, the Order of Canada, the Order of Ontario, Knight of the Légion 
d’Honneur of France.

MR. BILLY WONG WING HOO, BBs, JP, FICE, FHKIE, FIHT, FHKIHT, RPE

GENERAL MANAGER, CONsTRUCTION DEPARTMENT
HENDERsON LAND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Mr. Billy Wong is presently Director of Henderson China Properties Ltd., Senior Vice President of Henderson (China) 
Investment Co. Ltd., and General Manager of the Construction Department of Henderson Land Development Co. Ltd.

Mr. Wong participated in many infrastructure projects in his career, including Water Supply from China – Stage III, Hillside 
Escalator to Mid-Level, Ting Kau Bridge, Runway and Airfield Works of Chek Lap Kok Airport, Strategic Scheme Sewage 
Disposal Phase I, etc.

Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Institution of Civil Engineers, Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, Institution of Highways 
and Transportation and Hong Kong Institute of Highways and Transportation. He is also a Registered Professional Engineer 
under the Engineers Registration Ordinance Chapter 409. He was appointed as a Justice of the Peace in 2005. He served as 
President of Hong Kong Construction Association, Chairman of Construction Industry Training Authority and Chairman of 
Construction Industry Training Board, he is currently Permanent Supervisor of Hong Kong Construction Association and 
Board Member of Hong Kong Airport Authority.

PROFEssOR WONG WING-sHING (RETIRED ON 30 JUNE 2017)

CHOH-MING LI PROFEssOR OF INFORMATION ENGINEERING
THE CHINEsE UNIVERsITY OF HONG KONG

Professor Wong Wing Shing graduated from the Yale University with an M.S.B.A. degree and a doctoral degree from Harvard. 
He is an IEEE Fellow, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, and a Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of 
Engineering Sciences.

Professor Wong is Choh-Ming Li Professor of Information Engineering of the Chinese University of Hong Kong and had 
served as Chairman of the Information Engineering Department and Dean of the Graduate School. He was the Science 
Advisor at the Innovation and Technology Commission of the HKSAR government from 2003 to 2005 and was a Board 
Director and the Chairman of the Technical Committee of ASTRI from 2006 to 2008, and currently a Board Director of The 
Nano and Advanced Materials Institute Limited.

Professor Wong’s research interests include information-based control and wireless communication. He has received 
more than twenty competitive research grants. He has served as editors in various international journals and as chairman/
members of many committees in professional societies.
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Ms. WINNIE YEUNG CHEUNG-WAH (RETIRED ON 30 JUNE 2017)

AssIsTANT GENERAL COUNsEL
CORPORATE, ExTERNAL AND LEGAL AFFAIRs
MICROsOFT HONG KONG LIMITED

Ms. Winnie Yeung, Director of Corporate, External and Legal Affairs of Microsoft Hong Kong Limited, advises the company 
on a wide range of legal and public policy issues. She is also responsible for the strategy development and delivery of the 
company’s philanthropy initiatives. Ms. Yeung has expanded her role as Assistant General Counsel to lead the Commercial 
Legal team in Microsoft China since 2012. Her team provides legal support to consumer, corporate and online business 
groups in China.

Ms. Yeung graduated from the Faculty of Law at the University of Hong Kong. She is admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong 
and England and Wales. She has also received her MBA from the University of Toronto.

Ms. Yeung is a member of Personal Data (Privacy) Advisory Committee. She is a Vice President of Hong Kong Information 
Technology Federation. She also serves on the Board of Governors of Junior Achievement, Hong Kong.

PROFEssOR ALBERT YU CHEUNG-HOI, JP (RETIRED ON 30 JUNE 2017)

CHAIRMAN
HAI KANG LIFE CORPORATION LIMITED

Professor Albert Yu, is currently the Chairman of Hai Kang Life Corporation Limited, Chairman of Hong Kong Biotechnology 
Organization, Non-Official Member of Commission on Strategic Development of Central Policy Unit of Hong Kong, Director 
of Asian Fund for Cancer Research, Distinguished Member of Gordon Research Conferences Advisory Board for Hong Kong, 
Vice-Chairman of Hong Kong – Taiwan Youth Exchange Promotion Association, Vice-Chairman of Hong Kong United Youth 
Science and Technology Association, Vice-Director of Neuroscience Research Institute of Peking University, Chief of the 
Laboratory of Translational Medicine at the Institute of Systems Biomedicine of Peking University, Committee Member 
of Henan Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of China, Vice-President of the 
Chinese Neuroscience Society, President of the Beijing Society for Neuroscience and Member of the Standing Committee of 
the Beijing Association for Science and Technology.

Professor Yu is a well-respected scientist, professor and entrepreneur. He devotes most of his effort to neuroscience and 
clinical diagnosis research. He aims to promote Hong Kong to be the Biotechnology Research and Industry Hub in Asia.



26 2016-17 Annual Report

MEMBERs OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORs

(During the financial year and up to the date of this report)

   Further
 First appointed  Re-appointed   re-appointed 
 in July for  in July for  in July for 
name a term of 2 years a term of 2 years a term of 2 years

Chairperson
The Honourable Mrs. Fanny LAW FAN Chiu Fun, GBM, GBS, JP 2014* 2016
Members
Mr. CHEUK Wing Hing, JP^ 
 (Permanent Secretary for Innovation and Technology)
 (with Commissioner for Innovation and Technology, 
 Deputy Commissioner for Innovation and 
 Technology or Assistant Commissioner for Innovation and 
 Technology as alternate member) – – –
Dr. Sunny CHAI Ngai Chiu 2014 2016
Mr. Owen CHAN Sze Wai 
 (resigned with effect from 4 May 2017) 2014 2016
Mr. Raymond CHENG Siu Hong 2013 2015 2017
Ms. Cordelia CHUNG 2017
Mr. Kent HO Ching Tak 2017
Miss Nisa LEUNG Wing Yu, JP (retired on 30 June 2017) 2011 2013 2015
Ir Dr. Honourable LO Wai Kwok, 
 SBS, MH, JP, CEng, FHKIE, FIET, FIMechE, FHKEng, RPE 2012 2014 2016
Mr. Theodore MA Heng 2014 2016
Dr. Kim MAK Kin Wah, BBS, JP 2017
Mr. Joseph NGAI 2016
Professor SHYY Wei 2012 2014 2016
Mr. Richard SUN Po Yuen, JP, Certified Public Accountant 2012 2014 2016
Professor Paul TAM Kwong Hang, JP (retired on 30 June 2017) 2011 2013 2015
Professor TSUI Lap Chee, GBM, GBS, JP 2014 2016
Mr. Billy WONG Wing Hoo, BBS, JP, FICE, FHKIE, FIHT, FHKIHT, RPE 2012 2014 2016
Professor WONG Wing Shing (retired on 30 June 2017) 2015
Ms. Winnie YEUNG Cheung Wah (retired on 30 June 2017) 2011 2013 2015
Professor Albert YU Cheung Hoi, JP (retired on 30 June 2017) 2011 2013 2015

Remarks:

* Prior to commencement of chairpersonship in July 2014, Mrs. Fanny Law was appointed as a director for the period from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 
2014.

^ The public officer was appointed by the Financial Secretary of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region on an ex-officio 
basis with effect from 20 November 2015.
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BUsINEss DEVELOPMENT AND 
ADMIssION COMMITTEE (BDAC)

The Honourable Mrs. Fanny Law Fan Chiu Fun, 
 GBM, GBS, JP (Chairperson)
Professor Shyy Wei (Vice-Chairman)
Dr. Sunny Chai Ngai Chiu
Mr. Owen Chan Sze Wai
Ir Dr. Honourable Lo Wai Kwok, SBS, MH, JP
Mr. Theodore Ma Heng
Mr. Joseph Ngai
Mr. Billy Wong Wing Hoo, BBS, JP
Professor Wong Wing Shing
Professor Albert Yu Cheung Hoi, JP
Mr. Cheuk Wing Hing, JP

FINANCE AND ADMINIsTRATION 
COMMITTEE (FAC)

Mr. Raymond Cheng Siu Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Richard Sun Po Yuen, JP, Certified Public Accountant 
 (Vice-Chairman)
The Honourable Mrs. Fanny Law Fan Chiu Fun, GBM, GBS, JP
Mr. Theodore Ma Heng
Professor Tsui Lap Chee, GBM, GBS, JP
Mr. Cheuk Wing Hing, JP

PROJECTs AND FACILITIEs COMMITTEE (PFC)

Mr. Billy Wong Wing Hoo, BBS, JP (Chairman)
Professor Paul Tam Kwong Hang, JP (Vice-Chairman)
Ir Dr. Honourable Lo Wai Kwok, SBS, MH, JP
Professor Albert Yu Cheung Hoi, JP
Mr. Cheuk Wing Hing, JP

Remarks:

Mr. Owen Chan Sze Wai resigned from BDAC with effect from 4 May 2017.
Miss Nisa Leung Wing Yu retired from AC on 30 June 2017.
Mr. Theodore Ma Heng retired from BDAC on 14 August 2017.
Professor Paul Tam Kwong Hang retired from PFC on 30 June 2017.
Professor Wong Wing Shing retired from BDAC on 30 June 2017.
Professor Albert Yu Cheung Hoi retired from BDAC and PFC on 30 June 2017.

Updates with effect from 15 August 2017:
Ms. Cordelia Chung and Dr. Kim Mak Kin Wah joined BDAC and PFC.
Mr. Kent Ho Ching Tak joined FAC.
Mr. Theodore Ma Heng joined AC. 

BOARD COMMITTEEs
AUDIT COMMITTEE (AC)

Mr. Richard Sun Po Yuen, JP, Certified Public Accountant 
 (Chairman)
Mr. Raymond Cheng Siu Hong (Vice-Chairman)
Dr. Sunny Chai Ngai Chiu
Miss Nisa Leung Wing Yu, JP
Mr. Cheuk Wing Hing, JP

sENIOR sTAFF ADMINIsTRATION 
COMMITTEE (ssAC)

The Honourable Mrs. Fanny Law Fan Chiu Fun, 
 GBM, GBS, JP (Chairperson)
Mr. Raymond Cheng Siu Hong
Mr. Richard Sun Po Yuen, JP, Certified Public Accountant
Mr. Billy Wong Wing Hoo, BBS, JP
Mr. Cheuk Wing Hing, JP
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE sTRUCTURE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
REPORT
Our Corporation is a statutory body incorporated under 
the Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation 
Ordinance (the “HKSTP Ordinance”). We strive to attain 
and maintain high standards of corporate governance best 
suited to the needs and interests of the Corporation and 
its subsidiaries and conduct our business according to 

prudent commercial principles. The Corporation has made 
reference to the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate 
Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 (“CG Code”) 
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock 
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) in 
so far as they are applicable in achieving the purposes as 
set out in the HKSTP Ordinance. We believe transparency, 
accountability, fairness and ethics are the foundation on 
which we build trust and work with all our stakeholders for 
the benefits of Hong Kong.

shARehoLDeR
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THE BOARD
The Board is the governing body of the Corporation. It is 
responsible for formulating overall strategic directions and 
policies of the Corporation and overseeing management of 
the business.

As at 31 March 2017, the Board comprised 17 Non-Executive 
Directors including the Chairperson and 16 Board Members. 
The Chairperson is appointed by the Chief Executive of 
the HKSAR Government, and the Board Members are 
appointed by the Financial Secretary. All Board Members 
are appointed without honorarium, generally for a term of 
two-year and subject to re-appointment upon expiry of their 
terms. Each Board Member has a duty to act in good faith in 
the best interests of the Corporation. Members are aware of 
their collective and individual responsibilities to the HKSAR 
Government, being the sole shareholder of the Corporation, 
for the manner in which affairs of the Corporation are 
managed, controlled and operated.

BOARD COMPOsITION
Board Members come from varied but relevant backgrounds 
with a wide range of skills, experiences and expertise, 
originating from academia, industry, finance, investment, 
trading, property, legal and management consulting. One of 
our Board Members, the Permanent Secretary for Innovation 
and Technology, is a public officer. Biographical details of 
the Board Members are set out in the section headed “The 
Board” on pages 19 to 25 of the Annual Report.

CHAIRPERsON AND CHIEF ExECUTIVE 
OFFICER
The roles and responsibilities of the Chairperson of the 
Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation 
(“CEO”) are distinct and separate, enhancing independence 
and accountability.

The non-executive Chairperson is responsible for leading 
the Board to formulate overall strategic directions and 
policies of the Corporation. While encouraging Board 
Members to make full and effective contribution to the 
discussions at Board Meetings, she leads and facilitates the 
exchange of views on issues among Board Members in an 
effective manner.

The CEO is appointed by the Board as a remunerated full-
time employee of the Corporation, and is responsible for 
leading Management and staff of the Corporation in day-to-
day operations and implementing strategies as determined 
by the Board.

INDUCTION PROGRAMME
Newly appointed Board Members are invited to attend an 
induction programme which consists of a meeting with the 
CEO and senior management followed by a visit to major 
facilities of Science Park to familiarise themselves with the 
objectives, business plan and operations of the Corporation.

Board Members are also provided with a Director’s 
Manual which consists of constitutional documents of the 
Corporation and its committees, key guidelines and major 
programmes documents of the Corporation. Members 
are made aware of their responsibilities in managing 
and monitoring the affairs of the Corporation, and the 
importance of always acting in good faith and in the best 
interests of the Corporation.

KEEPING MEMBERs UP TO DATE
To keep abreast of the development of innovation and 
technology and to refresh knowledge and skills, Board 
Members attended a talk on “Application of Technology for 
Healthy Ageing” during the Board Planning Day, as well as 
other events and programmes arranged by the Corporation, 
such as the APAC Innovation Summit 2016 Series – IoT, 
Sensor, Robotics, Smart Cities and Angel X Angel, from time 
to time.

DECLARATION OF INTEREsTs
Once a year, Board Members are required to declare their 
proprietorships, partnerships or directorships of local and 
overseas public or private companies, as well as paid jobs, 
offices, trades, professions or vocations and interests in 
shareholdings in any public or private companies. They 
are also required to inform the Company Secretary within 
14 days of any changes. A register of Board Members’ 
declarations of interest is made available for public 
inspection upon request.

CONFLICT OF INTEREsT
The HKSTP Ordinance under which the Corporation was 
incorporated requires Members to declare their direct or 
indirect interests in any contracts or proposals considered 
by the Board or its Committees. Those with any conflict of 
interest must withdraw from the approval process. Board 
Members are made aware that they should avoid entering 
into any business contract with the Corporation in their 
personal capacity as a matter of principle: that is, they 
should not be personally involved in the bidding process 
or in the supply of goods or paid services. Where it is 
unavoidable that a Member will bid for a contract with the 
Corporation in his or her personal capacity, he or she should 
adhere to the guidelines on managing possible conflict 
of interest stipulated in the Guide to Handle Corporate 
Governance Matters of the Corporation.
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WHAT THE BOARD DOEs
The Board of Directors formulates strategic direction, 
oversees implementation of strategic plan, and approves 
the annual budget, corporate key performance indicators, 
10-year financial projection, as well as major development 
and redevelopment projects. It monitors the overall 
performance of the Corporation and ensures that effective 
controls are in place to manage potential risks. It also 
approves the appointment of external auditors and their 
remuneration during the period under review. It met six (5 
Board meetings plus Board Planning Day) times during the 
year with an average attendance rate of 78%.

The Chairperson maintains close contact with the Secretary 
for Innovation and Technology, the Permanent Secretary 
for Innovation and Technology, the Commissioner for 
Innovation and Technology as representatives of the sole 
shareholder of the Corporation, and the Chairmen of the 
Board Committees, as well as meeting regularly with the 
CEO and senior management to review strategic issues, 
business plans and future development.

COMPANY sECRETARY AND 
PROFEssIONAL ADVICE
All Board Members have access to the advice and services 
of the Company Secretary who is appointed by the Board 
and reports to the Chairperson and the CEO. The Company 
Secretary is accountable to the Board for ensuring that 
the Board procedures are followed and Board activities 
are efficiently and effectively conducted. To this end, the 
Company Secretary facilitates the Board and Management 
to adhere to Board processes as updated from time to time, 
and the provision of sufficient information to the Board by 
Management. In addition, procedures are in place to enable 
Directors to seek independent professional advice at the 
Corporation’s expense on matters relating to their roles and 
responsibilities.

REsPONsIBILITY FOR ACCOUNTs
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for ensuring 
that the preparation of the annual accounts of the 
Corporation is in accordance with statutory requirements 
and applicable accounting standards. The statement 
of the auditors of the Corporation about their reporting 
responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditors’ 
Report on page 5 of the Report of Directors and Financial 
Statements.

BOARD COMMITTEEs
The Board oversees five standing Committees:

•	 Business	Development	and	Admission	Committee
•	 Finance	and	Administration	Committee
•	 Projects	and	Facilities	Committee
•	 Audit	Committee
•	 Senior	Staff	Administration	Committee

Terms of Reference of the Committees set out the 
functions, duties and membership of the Committees. 
These Committees are accountable to the Board for their 
recommendations and decisions. Recommendations and 
decisions made by the Committees are reported to the 
Board on a regular basis.

Attendance records of each individual member of the Board 
of Directors are shown on page 32 of this Report.

BUsINEss DEVELOPMENT AND 
ADMIssION COMMITTEE
The Business Development and Admission Committee 
(“BDAC”), chaired by Mrs. Fanny Law, reviews applications 
for admission as tenants and grantees into the Corporation’s 
premises. It approves and monitors business initiatives and 
marketing programmes in accordance with the strategic 
plans approved by the Board. The Committee also keeps 
under review the Corporation’s admission guidelines and 
terms, and recommends major changes to the Board for 
approval.

FINANCE AND ADMINIsTRATION 
COMMITTEE
The Finance and Administration Committee (“FAC”), chaired 
by Mr. Raymond Cheng, approves accounting policies and 
recommends the annual budget and the 10-year financial 
projection to the Board for approval. It reviews the financial 
performance and key performance indicators results of 
the Corporation on a quarterly basis. It also reviews and 
recommends to the Board land premium, rental guidelines, 
investment and financing initiatives, changes of delegation 
of authorities, staff job grading structure, compensation 
and benefits policy and salary adjustment. Additionally, it 
advises the Board on human resources, procurement and IT 
policies.

PROJECTs AND FACILITIEs COMMITTEE
The Projects and Facilities Committee (“PFC”), chaired by 
Mr. Billy Wong, oversees and monitors the capital works 
projects, initiatives in respect of sustainability, safety, 
health and environment and facilities management of the 
Corporation’s premises. It also reviews or recommends 
to the Board the awarding of contracts for capital works, 
facilities management and related consultancy services.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee (“AC”), chaired by Mr. Richard 
Sun, oversees the corporate compliance function and 
considers the appointment, re-appointment and removal 
of the external auditor, the scope of service and the audit 
fee. It reviews findings set out in both the internal audit 
reports and external auditor’s management letters and 
the Management’s responses to them, and monitors the 
implementation of agreed actions. It also reviews the annual 
audited accounts, significant accounting policies, corporate 
governance practices, financial controls, internal controls 
and risk management systems with a view to complying 
with recognised standards and achieving continuous 
improvement. In 2016, it met the external auditors and 
Chief Compliance Officer without management presence 
and conducted a self-evaluation of its effectiveness and 
concluded that its performance was effective.

sENIOR sTAFF ADMINIsTRATION 
COMMITTEE
The Senior Staff Administration Committee (“SSAC”), 
chaired by Mrs. Fanny Law, comprises the Board’s 
Chairperson, all Committee Chairmen and the Government 
Member of the Board. This Committee is responsible for 
the selection of senior executives of the Corporation (first 
two tiers – CEO and Chief Officers) and setting performance 
targets and assessing performance of the senior executives 
on an annual basis. It recommends remuneration policies, 
determines appointment, remuneration package and 
variable remuneration awards, contract renewal and 
annual salary review for senior executives. It recommends 
appointment, remuneration package and variable 
remuneration awards and contract renewal of CEO to the 
Board for approval.

TAsK FORCE FOR sPECIFIC PROJECTs
Task Forces are set up on a need basis to handle specific 
projects. Experts in the related industries would be 
appointed as co-opted members to provide valuable 
experience and expertise to the Task Forces.

The Task Force for SPX1 and IE2.0 Projects, chaired by 
Mr. Billy Wong, was established in July 2016 to steer the 
development of SPX1 and IE2.0 Projects, oversees and 
advises on the design, procurement, construction, site 
safety, cost control and facilities management of these 
capital projects and make recommendations to the PFC for 
consideration and approval.

COMMITTEEs MONITORED BY THE FAC
The FAC monitored the Investment Committee and the Call 
Option Committee. Meetings of these committees are held 
on a need basis. The Investment Committee, chaired by the 
CEO, approves Corporate Venture Fund (“CVF”) investment 
and divestment decisions and oversees the operations of 
the CVF whereas the Call Option Committee, chaired by the 
CEO, decides on all matters relating to call option terms and 
exits. During the year, no meeting had been held but the Call 
Option Committee approved matters via paper circulation.

MEETING PROCEDUREs
The Board and Committees convene meetings on a regular 
basis, with special meetings held as and when necessary. 
The HKSTP Ordinance provides that at a meeting of the 
Board, all questions shall be decided by a majority of votes 
of the Members present.

Management circulates agenda and papers seven days prior 
to meetings in general. Board or Committee papers are not 
issued to Members who have conflict of interest.

The Company Secretary records the major points of 
discussions, recommendations, decisions and action items 
arising from the meetings and submit Committee reports 
to the Board for information. Outstanding matters are 
followed up by the relevant divisions and progress updates 
are reported at subsequent meetings.
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MEETINGS
BOARD MEMBERS

Board of 
Directors BDAC FAC PFC AC SSAC

The Hon. Mrs. Fanny LAW FAN Chiu Fun 6/6 6/6 5/5 – – 7/7

Permanent Secretary for Innovation and 
Technology# or his alternates

6/6 6/6 5/5 5/5 3/3 7/7

Dr. Sunny CHAI Ngai Chiu 5/6 3/6 – – 1/3 –

Mr. Owen CHAN Sze Wai 
(Retired from PFC on 19 July 2016 and 
joined BDAC on 20 July 2016)

2/6 0/5 – 0/2 – –

Mr. Raymond CHENG Siu Hong 5/6 – 5/5 – 3/3 6/7

Mr. David FONG Man Hung 
(Retired from 30 June 2016)

1/1 – – 0/1 – –

Miss Nisa LEUNG Wing Yu 5/6 – – – 3/3 –

Ir Dr. Hon. LO Wai Kwok 
(Joined PFC on 20 July 2016)

5/6 4/6 – 2/3 – –

Mr. Theodore MA Heng 3/6 6/6 4/5 – – –

Mr. Joseph NGAI 
(Appointed on 1 July 2016)

5/5 3/5 – – – –

Professor SHYY Wei 2/6 5/6 – – – –

Mr. Richard SUN Po Yuen 5/6 – 3/5 – 3/3 7/7

Professor Paul TAM Kwong Hang 6/6 – – 4/5 – –

Professor TSUI Lap Chee 5/6 – 5/5 – – –

Mr. Billy WONG Wing Hoo 6/6 5/6 – 5/5 – 6/7

Professor Wong Wing Shing 
(Retired from FAC on 19 July 2016)

4/6 3/6 1/2 – – –

Ms. Winnie YEUNG Cheung Wah 
(Retired from BDAC on 19 July 2016)

4/6 1/1 – – – –

Professor Albert YU Cheung Hoi 5/6 5/6 – 4/5 – –

Average Attendance Rate 78% 72% 88% 77% 87% 94%

Remark:

# All the Committee meetings including BDAC, FAC, PFC, AC and SSAC, except for the SSAC meetings held on 23 June 2016, 15 and 16 July 2016, were 
attended by the alternates of Permanent Secretary for Innovation and Technology on his behalf.

MEETING ATTENDANCE
The Board assumes the responsibility of ensuring each 
Member has spent sufficient time to engage in the affairs of 
the Corporation.

A summary of meeting attendance of Board Members for 
the financial year from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 is 
provided in the following table.
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MANAGEMENT AND sTAFF
Under the leadership of the CEO, Management and staff 
are responsible for managing the Corporation’s day-to-day 
operations and implementing strategies as determined 
by the Board. They must comply with the Corporation’s 
Employee Code of Conduct and apply prudent commercial 
principles as required under the HKSTP Ordinance.

ETHICAL BEHAVIOUR AND CULTURE
The ethical behaviour of the Corporation is well defined 
in the Employee Code of Conduct, which is reviewed on a 
regular basis. It covers issues such as prevention of bribery, 
conflict of interest, acceptance of gifts and advantages, 
handling of confidential information and preservation 
of secrecy, outside business or employment, financial 
issues, operational and administrative transactions, and 
intellectual property. Staff members are reminded every 
six months on the importance of compliance. The ICAC is 
invited to give briefing on the prevention of bribery and 
conflict of interest to employees on a regular basis. The last 
briefing session was conducted in November 2016.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RIsK 
MANAGEMENT
The Corporation maintains a high standard of corporate 
governance, transparency and accountability. The system of 
internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable 
assurance to the Board regarding the effectiveness and 
efficiency of operations, the reliability of financial reporting, 
and compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

Management has put in place a Whistleblowing Policy 
whereby employees and external parties may raise 
concerns, in strict confidence, about possible improprieties 
in financial reporting or other matters. Information on this 
policy can be found on the Corporation’s website.

With the help of the corporate compliance function, 
Management performs an annual review of the 
Corporation’s internal control system in accordance with 
the COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 
the Treadway Commission) framework as recommended 
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 
The COSO framework comprises five main components: 
control environment, risk assessment, control activities, 
information and communication, and monitoring. The 
review is designed to assess the risks associated with 
the key processes and the effectiveness of the controls in 
mitigating those identified risks. Independent verification of 
the effectiveness of controls is performed by the corporate 
compliance function.

Risk management is an integral component of the 
Corporation’s corporate governance. In 2016/17, we have 
established a risk management framework. Details of the 
risk management framework, the key risks and the key 
mitigations are described in the Risk Management Report 
on pages 37 to 38.

During 2016/17, the Board, through the Audit Committee, 
has conducted a review and assessment of the effectiveness 
of the risk management and internal control systems of 
the Corporation and was satisfied with the effectiveness 
of the Corporation in managing risks based on the risk 
management report and the result of internal control 
review.

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk 
management and internal control systems and reviewing 
their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage 
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business 
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not 
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

CORPORATE COMPLIANCE
The corporate compliance function was established in 
November 2004 as part of the on-going commitment on 
the part of the Board and the Management to improve 
the Corporation’s corporate governance. The corporate 
compliance function reports directly to the Audit 
Committee. It plays an important role in monitoring the 
Corporation’s internal governance and provides objective 
assurance to the Board that a sound risk management and 
internal control system are maintained and operated by 
Management.

Using risk-based methodology, corporate compliance plans 
its work schedule in consultation with, but independent of 
management, and the audit plan is submitted to the Audit 
Committee for approval.

Independent reviews of financial, business and functional 
operations and activities are conducted with audit resources 
focusing on the higher risk areas. Audit findings and 
recommendations arising from different assignments are 
reported to the respective heads of divisions for action, and 
corporate compliance follows up with the implementation 
of the agreed actions. Significant issues are brought to the 
attention of the Audit Committee and the Board.
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Code provision Reason for deviation and corresponding measure

A.6.5 All directors should participate in continuous 
professional development to develop and 
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to 
ensure that their contribution to the board 
remains informed and relevant. The issuer 
should be responsible for arranging and funding 
suitable training, placing an appropriate 
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a 
listed company director.

All directors of the Corporation are appointed by the 
Chief Executive/Financial Secretary of the HKSAR 
Government who are elite in their fields of profession and 
possess adequate and updated knowledge and skills. 
The Corporation also invited all directors to events and 
programmes which enriched their knowledge to updated 
innovation and technology developments to facilitate 
the discharge of their Director’s duties. Please refer to the 
paragraph “Keeping Members Up to Date” on page 29 of 
this Report for details of events participated by the directors 
during 2016/17.I(i) To provide transparency, the issuers must 

include the following information for the 
accounting period covered by the annual 
report and significant subsequent events for 
the period up to the date of publication of the 
annual report, to the extent possible: how each 
director, by name, complied with A.6.5

A.7.1 For regular board meetings, and as far as 
practicable in all other cases, an agenda and 
accompanying board papers should be sent, 
in full, to all directors. These should be sent in 
a timely manner and at least 3 days before the 
intended date of a board or board committee 
meeting (or other agreed period).

For board meetings held during 2016/17, 11% of the total 
number of approval papers was dispatched less than 3 days 
before the meetings which mainly include papers that were 
strictly confidential in nature.

Management would abide by the timeliness of paper 
distribution as far as applicable to provide the Board with 
reasonable time to review papers in advance of meetings.

ExTERNAL AUDIT
KPMG was the Corporation’s external auditor. It plays an 
important role in reviewing the truth and fairness of the 
financial statements as well as enhancing the system of 
internal controls of the Corporation. The external auditor 
meets with the Audit Committee at least twice a year to 
discuss the scope of the audit (prior to commencement 
of work) and to report findings. The Audit Committee 
reviews each year a statement from the auditors confirming 
their independence and objectivity and discusses with 
the auditors the scope and appropriate fees for any non-
audit services requested by the Corporation. The Audit 
Committee and Management are responsible for ensuring 
that the external auditor is not engaged by the Corporation 
on any other assignments that may compromise the 
external auditor’s independence.

The auditor’s remuneration in respect of audit provided 
to the Corporation was HK$460,908 for the year ended 31 
March 2017. Auditor’s remuneration in respect of non-audit 
services provided to the Corporation was HK$9,000 for the 
year ended 31 March 2017.

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY
The authority of the Board and the levels of authority 
delegated to the Committees and the Management are 
clearly defined and documented in the Schedule of 
Delegated Authorities (“SDA”). An annual review of SDA was 
conducted and some changes in approval authorities were 
approved by the Board in March 2017 to further enhance 
operational efficiency while maintaining appropriate 
control.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICEs
Section 7 of the Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks 
Corporation Ordinance provides that the Corporation shall 
conduct its business according to prudent commercial 
principles. Although the Corporation is not required to 
comply with the CG Code, we have made reference to it 
and voluntarily complied with the code provisions in so 
far as they are applicable in conducting our business and 
achieving the purposes as set out in HKSTP Ordinance, 
except those which are set out in table below.
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TRANsPARENCY
The Corporation reports annually to the Permanent 
Secretary for Innovation and Technology the remuneration 
arrangements for the top two tiers of senior management, 
including the CEO and Chief Officers.

For purposes of full transparency, the annual emoluments 
of the Corporation’s five highest paid employees are 
disclosed under note 9 to the financial statements on page 
28 of the Report of the Directors and Financial Statements.

The attendance of Directors at meetings is reported on page 
32 of this Report.

COMMUNICATION
We maintain continuous and transparent communication 
with all our stakeholders. Multiple channels were used to 
ensure easy and direct communication, including media 
interviews, press conferences and participation in a wide 
range of local and overseas exhibitions and conferences. 
Information about our services, offerings, latest news and 
events are available on the corporate website for easy 
public access.

sOCIAL MEDIA
Given the rapid establishment of digital communication, 
we continue to enrich our Facebook page content 
and expanded our YouTube video content to facilitate 
engagement with the public. Such content covers the range 
of exciting activities held at the Park, highlights of insights 
and technology trends from industry conferences, weekend 
science workshops for parents and students, as well as 
information on innovations from our start-up community. 
The number of Facebook fans increased 20% and number 
of views on YouTube increased 161% over the past year, 
thereby extending our reach to the community.

CARING COMPANY
Being a responsible corporate citizen, we are committed to 
embracing corporate sustainability and social responsibility 
initiatives. This is the ninth consecutive year that the 
Corporation has been recognised as a Caring organisation 
under the Hong Kong Council of Social Service Caring 
Company scheme. The Corporation was commended 
for its dedication and achievement in the areas of giving, 
mentoring, and caring for employees as well as the 
environment.

sPONsORsHIP
During the year, the Corporation provided venue 
sponsorship for 65 events organised by non-government 
organisations to promote innovation and technology. 
These events included the annual “Hong Kong Student 
Science Project Competition” organised by The Hong 
Kong Federation of Youth Groups at Science Park to foster 
young people’s interests in innovation and technology, 
UNESCO UN70 Peace and Sustainable Development Youth 
Programme that displayed creative ideas from students 
on how the community can work in a more collaborative 
manner to strive for sustainable development and 
harmony, Hong Kong Youth Science and Technology 
Innovation Competition 2016/2017 held by Hong Kong 
New Generation Cultural Association Science Innovation 
Centre in developing adolescents’ innovative ideas for 
applying their science knowledge in creating inventions, 
FabLearn Conference Hong Kong 2016 organised by STEM 
Initiative Hong Kong Limited, to promote STEM education in 
grooming the next generation of innovation and technology 
talents in Hong Kong as well as World Robotics Olympiad 
2016 Hong Kong Robot Challenge organised by Hong Kong 
Robotics Technology and Education Association to develop 
their creativity, design and problem solving skills through 
challenging and educational robot competitions and 
activities.

sTAFF ENRICHMENT
The Corporation continues to support programmes for 
professional skills enhancement and lifelong learning of 
employees, in the areas of creative problem solving and 
team synergies, communications, feedback and coaching 
apart from functional skills related training. In addition, 
stress management and staff engagement trainings were 
also provided to all levels of staff to promote psychological 
health and positive attitude in the workplace.

The Corporation continues the promotion of work-life 
balance among staff through various activities organised 
and sponsored by its Sports and Recreation Working 
Group as well as SPARK. In addition, the Corporation also 
encourages staff to participate in various charity events 
such as Dress Casual Day, CLP Your Love Program and Love 
Teeth Day.

Furthermore, the Corporation offers Internship Programme 
for local and overseas university students to gain 
understanding and hands-on working experience to 
facilitate their career planning.
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sUsTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
HKSTP published its third Sustainability Report in December 
2016, covering our aspirations and progress in the areas 
of environment, health and safety, employee welfare and 
community engagement. Produced in accordance with both 
the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEx) “ESG 
Reporting Guide” and the Global Reporting Initiative “GRI-G4 
Guideline”, the report content was verified by an external 
assurance agency.

sAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
(“sHE”) GOVERNANCE
Health, safety and environmental protection are of 
paramount importance to HKSTP. Our SHE management 
system adopts a risk-based approach to identify and 
minimize potential health, safety and environmental 
incidents, and to mitigate their consequences. Day-to-day 
implementation is coordinated by SHE Sub-Working Groups 
which focus on general and laboratory SHE matters and 
report to a Central SHE Working Group.

Simple-to-follow procedures and guidelines are in place 
for our employees and also – where relevant – to our 
occupants, contractors and service providers. In all, SHE 
orientation and awareness training delivered to HKSTP staff 
amounted to 1.196 person-hours during 2016-17, with zero 
staff injuries reported throughout the whole year.

INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT 
sTANDARDs
HKSTP maintained the third-party certification of its six 
ISO management systems during 2016/17, with zero non-
conformities raised:

•	 ISO	9001	–	quality	management
•	 ISO	14001	–	environmental	management
•	 ISO	17025	–	competence	of	testing	and	calibration	

laboratories
•	 OHSAS	18001	–	occupational	health	&	safety	(OH&S)	

management
•	 ISO	27001	–	information	security	management
•	 ISO	50001	–	energy	management

The quality and environmental management systems 
were both upgraded to meet the latest standards issued 
by ISO and, with occupational health & safety, were 
also streamlined into an integrated system to reduce 
documentation and auditing requirements by almost 30%.

sUsTAINABILITY HIGHLIGHTs FOR 
2016/17
HKSTP became a signatory to the Environment Bureau’s 
Energy Saving Buildings (“eSB”) programme in June 2016 
and continued its participation in other waste reduction and 
OH&S charters. Key achievements during 2016/17 included:

•	 a	1.56	GWh	(2.9%)	reduction	in	facilities	energy	use	
in Science Park Phase 1 and 2 buildings, through 
the introduction of numerous energy efficiency 
improvements;

•	 20,633m3 of condensate and rainwater recycled for site 
irrigation and cleansing;

•	 over	23	tonnes	of	food	waste	from	Science	Park	F&B	
outlets diverted from landfill, and recycled into animal 
feed;

•	 a	20%	reduction	in	office	paper	(from	16	to	13	A4	sheets	
per person on average), through various IT workflow 
enhancements and digital signatures;

•	 “Excellent”	indoor	air	quality	(“IAQ”)	certification	
achieved by all thirteen Phase 1 & 2 buildings submitted 
for assessment;

•	 zero	OH&S	injuries	to	HKSTP	staff,	and	an	average	
one first-aid case per month affecting FMO staff and 
contractors (unchanged from the previous year);

•	 a	62%	decrease	in	injury	reports	(from	21	to	8	cases)	
affecting Partner Companies and visitors in common/
public areas at Science Park and InnoCentre;

•	 zero	reportable	injuries	associated	with	the	Science	
Park expansion (“SPX1”) project, with independent 
safety audits completed each month;

•	 zero	laboratory	related	injuries	reported,	with	annual	
inspections of 73 tenant/incubatee laboratories 
showing an overall decrease in SHE observations;

•	 full	compliance	with	HKSTP’s	Food	Safety	&	Hygiene	
programme by Science Park and InnoCentre food & 
beverage outlets;

•	 twelve	incubatees	and	incubation	graduates	joining	the	
Hong Kong Quality Start-up Recognition Scheme under 
HKSTP’s partnership with HKQAA.

AWARDs AND RECOGNITION
HKSTP initiatives towards quality and sustainability were 
recognized through attainment of the Grand Award in the 
Hong Kong Non-Residential (New Building) category of the 
Quality Building Award (“QBA”) 2016 for Science Park Phase 
3ab. Designed, constructed and managed to continue 
the success of the Park’s thriving technology ecosystem, 
Phase 3ab scored favourably across all metrics in “Vision 
and Teamwork”, “Design and Innovation”, “Construction”, 
“Project Cost & Budget”, “Post-Occupancy Considerations” 
and “Environmental Considerations”. The Grand Award is 
the highest recognition for nominations in each of the six 
award categories.
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RIsK MANAGEMENT REPORT
Successful management of existing and emerging risks 
is critical to the long-term success of our Corporation. In 
order to achieve our strategic objectives and leverage the 
potential for success, risk must be accepted to a reasonable 
degree. Risk management is therefore an integral 
component of our Corporation’s corporate governance.

In 2016/17, we have established a risk management 
framework. Our risk governance framework is set out below.

RIsK GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
strategic Direction and Risk Appetite
The Management, with oversight by the Board, determines 
the strategic direction of the Corporation and agrees the 
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take to achieve 
its strategic objectives.

Management is responsible for ensuring that the risk 
management system is effective. Having determined 
and communicated the appropriate level of risk for 
the business, the Management has established and 
maintains a risk management system to identify, assess, 
manage and monitor risks which could threaten the 
existence of the Corporation or have a significant impact 
on the achievement of its strategic objectives. This risk 
management system includes a risk management policy 
and procedures which helps to reinforce the tone set from 
the top on risk, by instilling an appropriate risk culture in 
the Corporation whereby employees are expected to be risk 
aware, control minded and “do the right thing”. Each risk 
has been assigned to a responsible staff and the CEO acts 
as the overall risk sponsor to ensure that there is clarity of 
responsibility.

The Management reports to the Audit Committee on the 
overall risk position of the Corporation, on the individual 
risks and their management, and on the performance and 
effectiveness of the risk management system as a whole on 
a bi-annual basis.

Risk Management Process
The Management applies a consistent risk methodology 
across all key areas of the business. This is underpinned 
by a risk and control register which reinforces visibility 
of risks, controls and actions and accountability of 
ownership. The process of risk identification, assessment 
and response is continuous and embedded within the day-
to-day operations of the business units. The risk register 
is reviewed by senior management at least on a quarterly 
basis.

Effectiveness of Risk Management system
The Management reports to the Audit Committee on a bi-
annual basis on the performance and effectiveness of the 
risk management system. Additionally, the Audit Committee 
receives assurance from Corporate Compliance Division 
that the risk management system has functioned effectively. 
For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Audit Committee, 
with delegated authority from the Board, evaluated the 
effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management system 
and concluded that it was effective and adequate.

PRINCIPAL RIsKs
There are some principal risks which are inherent to the 
Corporation. For these inherent risks we have controls, 
processes and procedures in place as a matter of course 
which serve to mitigate each risk to either minimise the 
likelihood of the event occurring and/or minimise the 
impact if it does occur. The risks listed below are the 
principal risks of various types to which we are exposed and 
are not exhaustive. They will necessarily evolve over time 
due to the dynamic nature of our business.

Key Risks Description Key Mitigations
Strategic Risk The risk of being not able to strengthen Hong 

Kong’s position as the hub for innovation and 
technology

•	 Proactively	engage	different	levels	of	
government to solicit support in government 
policy, market adoption, education and 
training, investment, etc.

•	 Proactively	collect	and	analyse	information	on	
high-tech industry development to develop 
strategy and action plans for our major 
technology clusters and platforms

•	 Proactively	identify	collaboration	projects	
with various stakeholders in the Big Bay Area 
to create synergies

Financial Risk The risk of not being able to achieve financial 
self-sustainability with the current business 
model

•	 Undertake	a	comprehensive	review	on	
HKSTP’s existing business model on a regular 
basis

•	 Implement	stringent	control	on	expenditure
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Key Risks Description Key Mitigations
Safety, Health and 
Environmental 
(SHE) Risk

The risk of not being able to prevent health and 
safety hazards and protect our environment

•	 Maintain	the	third-party	certification	of	
occupational, safety and health (OHSAS 
18001), environmental management 
(ISO 14001) and HKSTP’s laboratories 
quality management (ISO 9001) to help 
us systematically to identify, evaluate and 
manage SHE risks

•	 SHE	policies	and	procedures	and	compliance	
audits are in place for our tenants, staff 
members, contractors, visitors and laboratory 
users

•	 Implement	SHE	risk	control	evaluation	for	
laboratory tenants and conduct annual 
laboratory walkthrough and safety inspection 
to all tenant laboratories

•	 Monitor	food	hygiene	standards	at	our	food	
and beverage outlets

Information 
Security Risk

Inadequate processes and procedures leading 
to security breaches and loss or leakage of 
critical data

•	 Procedures	and	measures	are	in	place	to	
prevent security breaches

•	 Constantly	on	the	alert	of	new	cyber	threats	
and take immediate measures to address 
them

•	 Conduct	mandatory	information	security	
awareness training for staff members to raise 
their awareness of common security breach 
tactics and safe computing practices on a 
regular basis

•	 Appoint	professional	security	consultants	to	
assess system vulnerability and implement 
solution to address any security issues

Operational Risk Inadequate or failed internal processes which 
pose a material impact to the reputation and 
operation of HKSTP

•	 Policies	and	procedures	and	monitoring	
programmes are in place to address various 
operational and fraud risks

•	 Compliance	audits	are	conducted

Reputational Risk Negative publicity due to allegations/negative 
articles in the press

•	 Maintain	a	close	relationship	with	the	press	
and the media

•	 Communicate	honestly	and	effectively	with	
the public when handling negative publicity

•	 Continue	to	review	and	improve	the	issue/
crisis communication

Legal and 
Regulatory Risk

Serious loss resulting from breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws, regulations or 
contractual obligations

•	 Legal	advice	sought	on	business	activities	and	
new initiatives

•	 Monitoring	programmes	are	in	place

•	 Compliance	audits	are	conducted
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INCOME

FINANCIAL REVIEW
FINANCIAL sUMMARY

In HK$’ million 2016/17 2015/16 %

Income 882 737 19.7%

Operating expenses (542) (548) (1.1%)

Operating surplus before interest and depreciation (EBITDA) 340 189 79.9%

Net interest income/(expense) 16 (10) (260.0%)

Depreciation (net of deferred income) (314) (283) 11.0%

Result for the year 42 (104) (140.4%)

OVERVIEW
HKSTP and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) reported an 
operating surplus before interest and depreciation (EBITDA) 
of $340 million and the result for the year of $42 million, 
compared to EBITDA of $189 million and result of $-104 
million last year.

Total income increased by $145 million or 19.7% to $882 
million in 2016/17 mainly due to higher gross rental income 
and higher Industrial Estates income.

Gross rental income grew by $73 million or 14.7% to $572 
million mainly attributed to higher occupancy from Science 
Park Phase 3.

Industrial Estates land premia, consent fee and other 
income increased by $61 million or 188% to $94 million 
mainly due to one-off consent fee.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE IN HK$ MILLION

INCOME BY sOURCE 
(FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017)

Gross Rental 
Income 65% 
(2016: 68%) 

Land premia, 
Consent Fee and 
Other Income 11% 
(2016: 5%)   

Property 
Management Fee, 
Air - Conditioning
and Support 
Facility Income 22% 
(2016: 24%)

Income from 
Technology Support 

Centres 2% 
(2016: 3%)   

HK$882m
(2016: HK$737m)
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OPERATING ExPENsEs FINANCING

The Group conducts its business according to prudent 
commercial principles. It continues to maintain a stringent 
control on its operating expenses while extending its 
support to technology companies and industries. Operating 
expenses decreased by 1.1% to $542 million in 2016/17.

DEPRECIATION
Depreciation (net of deferred income) increased by 10.7% to 
$314 million, mainly due to readiness of remaining Science 
Park Phase 3 buildings.

FINANCIAL POsITION
Fixed assets amounted to $9,670 million, which accounted 
for 47.8% of total assets. During the year, the Group received 
Government capital injection for Stage 1 of the Science 
Park Expansion Programme, a Data Technology Hub and 
an Advanced Manufacturing Centre amounting to $9,476 
million. As at 31 March 2017, cash, bank balances and 
deposits amounted to $10,475 million, which made up of 
51.8% of total assets.

CAsH FLOW
Net cash flow from operating activities amounted to $370 
million for the year, mainly attributable to the EBITDA 
generated.

OPERATING ExPENsEs BY CATEGORY
(FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017)

Expenses 
for Property 

Management and 
Technology Support 

Centres 50%
(2016:49%)

Administrative and 
Operating Expenses 
38%
(2016: 39%)

Marketing and 
Promotion 
Expenses 8% 
(2016: 9%)

Incubation Support 
and Technology 

Transfer Expenses 4% 
(2016: 3%)

HK$542m
(2016: HK$548m)

The Group’s borrowing was from issuance of Notes under 
the Medium Term Notes Programme and Government of the 
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. The government 
loan for Phase 2 development decreased by $106 million to 
$487 million mainly due to repayment during the year.

FINANCIAL RIsK MANAGEMENT
The Group runs its operations with transactions 
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. It has minimal currency 
exposure because income, operating expenses and capital 
expenditure are largely denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

OUTLOOK
To provide further capacity to sustain the vibrant growth of 
the innovation and technology ecosystem in Hong Kong, 
HKSTP has embarked on Science Park expansion project 
during the year.  The new towers are expected to provide 
22% more or around 74,000 sqm additional office space 
when completed in 2020.

In January 2017, HKSAR Government announced the plan 
to develop the Lok Ma Chau Loop into a “Hong Kong - 
Shenzhen Innovation and Technology Park”. It will be an 
important infrastructure which will shape the future of 
Hong Kong’s innovation and technology development and 
ensure its sustained economic growth. HKSTP would set up 
a wholly-owned subsidiary company which will be vested 
with the responsibility to build the superstructure of the 
Park, as well as to operate, maintain and manage the same.

HKSTP is committed to continuously driving the 
development of the innovation and technology ecosystem 
and maintain financial sustainability of the organisation.

LOAN MATURITY PROFILE
As AT 31 MARCH 2017

After 2 years but 
within 5 years 

52%
(2016: 50%)

After 5 years 39%
(2016: 42%)

After 1 year but 
within 2 years 4%
(2016: 4%)

Within 1 year 4%
(2016: 4%)

HK$2,193m
(2016: HK$2,299m)
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL sUMMARY

(In HK$’ million) 2016/17 2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13

Comprehensive income
Income 882 737 767 735 796
Operating expenses (542) (548) (509) (447) (478)

Operating surplus before interest 
 and depreciation 340 189 258 288 318
Net interest income/(expense) 16 (10) 16 8 27
Depreciation (net of deferred income) (314) (283) (455) (228) (211)

Result for the year 42 (104) (181) 68 134

Financial position
Non-current assets 11,519 9,685 9,156 8,803 7,492
Current assets 8,695 1,081 2,189 1,069 2,305
Current liabilities (853) (753) (1,056) (937) (769)
Net current assets 7,842 328 1,133 132 1,536

Total assets less current liabilities 19,361 10,013 10,289 8,935 9,028
Non-current liabilities (4,046) (4,217) (4,389) (2,853) (3,015)

Net assets 15,315 5,796 5,900 6,082 6,013

Share capital 15,211 5,734 5,734 5,734 5,734
Reserves 104 62 166 348 279

Total equity 15,315 5,796 5,900 6,082 6,013

Key operation statistics as at year end
Number of tenant companies 381 360 416 384 382
Number of incubatees 267 238 173 142 127

 648 598 589 526 509

Number of Industrial Estate grantees 165 165 167 170 171

Occupancy rates:
Science Park 79.1%^# 86.5%^ 81.0%^ 95.6% 96.0%
InnoCentre 72.4% 90.7% 92.6% 96.6% 94.3%
Industrial Estates 93.0% 95.0% 96.2% 96.4% 97.7%

^ Including the first three buildings of Science Park Phase 3 which opened in September 2014
# Including the next two buildings of Science Park Phase 3 which opened in September 2016





Printed on FSCTM certi�ed paper using environmentally
friendly plate system and soy-based inks



EM
PO

W
ERING INNOVATIO

N     DELIVERING SUCCESS
2016-2017 An

n
uAl Repo

Rt
Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation 

www.hkstp.org



Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation
2016-2017 Report of the Directors and Financial Statements

EMPOWERING
INNOVATION
DELIVERING
SUCCESS





2016-17 Report of the Directors and Financial Statements

 Page

RePoRt of the DiRectoRs 2

inDePenDent AuDitoR’s RePoRt 5

AuDiteD finAnciAl stAtements
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 9

Consolidated Statement of  Financial Position 10

Consolidated Statement of  Changes in Equity 12

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 13

Notes to Financial Statements 14

contents



2 

Directors’ report
The directors present their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017.

principal activities

The principal activities of Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation (the “Corporation”) are to facilitate the 
research and development and application of technologies in manufacturing and service industries in Hong Kong; to 
support the development, transfer and use of new or advanced technologies in Hong Kong; and to establish or develop any 
premises where activities related to the purposes prescribed above are, or are to be, carried out, and to manage and control 
the land and other facilities comprised in such premises. Details of the principal activities of the Corporation’s subsidiaries 
are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

results

The results of the Corporation and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017 and the financial position 
of the Group as at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 9 to 42.

property, plant anD equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 11 to the 
financial statements.

construction in progress

Details of movements in the construction in progress of the Group during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial 
statements.

inDustrial estates

Details of movements in the Industrial Estates of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

share capital

Details of the share capital of the Corporation are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

Directors

All directors were appointed and re-appointed in accordance with sections 1(1), 1(2) and 1(3)(b) of Schedule 2 to the Hong 
Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation Ordinance (the “Ordinance”).
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Directors (continueD)

The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:

   further
 first appointed  Re-appointed   re-appointed 
 with effect from  with effect from  with effect from 
 July for  July for  July for 
name a term of 2 years a term of 2 years a term of 2 years

chairperson
The Honourable Mrs. Fanny LAW FAN Chiu Fun, GBM, GBS, JP 2014* 2016
members
Mr. CHEUK Wing Hing, JP^ 
 (Permanent Secretary for Innovation and Technology)
 (with Commissioner for Innovation and Technology, 
 Deputy Commissioner for Innovation and 
 Technology or Assistant Commissioner for Innovation and 
 Technology as alternate member) – – –
Dr. Sunny CHAI Ngai Chiu 2014 2016
Mr. Owen CHAN Sze Wai 
 (resigned with effect from 4 May 2017 
 in accordance with section 1(3)(d) of 
 Schedule 2 to the Ordinance) 2014 2016
Mr. Raymond CHENG Siu Hong 2013 2015 2017
Ms. Cordelia CHUNG 2017
Mr. Kent HO Ching Tak 2017
Miss Nisa LEUNG Wing Yu, JP (retired on 30 June 2017) 2011 2013 2015
Ir Dr. Honourable LO Wai Kwok, 
 SBS, MH, JP, CEng, FHKIE, FIET, FIMechE, FHKEng, RPE 2012 2014 2016
Mr. Theodore MA Heng 2014 2016
Dr. Kim MAK Kin Wah, BBS, JP 2017
Mr. Joseph NGAI 2016
Professor SHYY Wei 2012 2014 2016
Mr. Richard SUN Po Yuen, JP, Certified Public Accountant 2012 2014 2016
Professor Paul TAM Kwong Hang, JP (retired on 30 June 2017) 2011 2013 2015
Professor TSUI Lap Chee, GBM, GBS, JP 2014 2016
Mr. Billy WONG Wing Hoo, BBS, JP, FICE, FHKIE, FIHT, FHKIHT, RPE 2012 2014 2016
Professor WONG Wing Shing (retired on 30 June 2017) 2015
Ms. Winnie YEUNG Cheung Wah (retired on 30 June 2017) 2011 2013 2015
Professor Albert YU Cheung Hoi, JP (retired on 30 June 2017) 2011 2013 2015

Remarks:

* Prior to commencement of chairpersonship in July 2014, Mrs. Fanny Law was appointed as a director for the period from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014 
in accordance with section 1(1)(b) of Schedule 2 to the Ordinance.

^ The public officer was appointed by the Financial Secretary of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region on an ex-officio basis 
with effect from 20 November 2015 in accordance with sections 1(1)(b) and (2) of Schedule 2 to the Ordinance.
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Directors’ rights to acquire shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Corporation a party to any arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, 
to enable the directors of the Corporation to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the 
Corporation, its subsidiaries or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance to which the Corporation, or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the 
Corporation had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

auDitors

KPMG was re-appointed as auditors of the Corporation for the year ended 31 March 2017.

KPMG retire and their re-appointment as auditors of the Corporation was approved by the Board of Directors on 17 August 
2017.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

lAW fAn chiu fun fanny, GBm, GBs, JP
Chairperson
Hong Kong
17 August 2017
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inDepenDent auDitor’s report
independent auditor’s report to the Board of Directors of hong Kong science and technology Parks corporation
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation Ordinance)

opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation (“the 
Corporation”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 9 to 42, which comprise the consolidated statement of 
financial position as at 31 March 2017, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement 
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of 
the Group as at 31 March 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated 
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key auDit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters.
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Key auDit matters (continueD)

assessing recoverability of the carrying value of property, plant and equipment

Refer to accounting policy 2.4(d), 2.4(h) and note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

the key audit matter how the key audit matter was addressed in our 
audit

As at 31 March 2017, the Group held property, plant and 
equipment located in Hong Kong with carrying amounts 
totalling HK$9,136 million which represented 45% of the 
Group’s total assets at that date.

The Science Park segment of the Group sustained 
a deficit for the year ended 31 March 2017, which 
management considered to be an indicator that 
the carrying value of property, plant and equipment 
attributable to that segment may not be recovered. 
Consequently, the recoverable amounts of property, 
plant and equipment in the Science Park segment were 
estimated by management and compared with their 
carrying amounts.

The recoverable amounts of property, plant and 
equipment were assessed by management based on 
the value in use model by comparing the carrying values 
of the property, plant and equipment with the net 
present value of the forecast cash flows. The assessment 
of the recoverable amounts is inherently subjective 
as it involves the exercise of significant management 
judgement and estimation, particularly in determining 
future occupancy rates, rental growth rates, terminal 
rates and the discount rate applied.

We identified the assessment of the recoverability of the 
carrying value of property, plant and equipment as a key 
audit matter because management’s assessment of the 
recoverable amounts involved significant judgement 
and estimation which could be subject to management 
bias.

Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of 
the carrying value of property, plant and equipment 
included the following:

•	 evaluating	the	methodology	adopted	by	
management in the discounted cash flow forecast, 
the identification of cash generating units and the 
allocation of assets to the relevant cash generating 
units with reference to the guidance in the prevailing 
accounting standards;

•	 with	the	assistance	of	our	internal	valuation	
specialists, evaluating the key estimates and 
assumptions adopted in the discounted cash flow 
forecast, including future occupancy rates, rental 
growth rates, terminal rates and the discount rate 
applied, by comparing these against historical 
results, publicly available market information and by 
utilising the industry knowledge and experience of 
our internal property valuation specialists;

•	 comparing	the	actual	operating	results	for	the	current	
year with management’s forecast operating results 
in its recoverability assessment for the previous 
year in order to assess the historical accuracy of 
management’s forecasting process, discussing with 
management significant variances identified and 
considering the impact of these variances on the 
discounted cash flow forecast for the current year; 
and

•	 performing	sensitivity	analyses	by	making	
adjustments to the future occupancy rates and rental 
growth rates to assess the impact on the conclusions 
reached by management in its recoverability 
assessment and considering the risk of possible 
management bias in the recoverability assessment 
exercise.
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information other than the consoliDateD financial statements anD 
auDitor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included in the 
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

responsibilities of the Directors for the consoliDateD financial 
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view 
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to 
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative 
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial 
reporting process.

auDitor’s responsibilities for the auDit of the consoliDateD financial 
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This 
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We 
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify	and	assess	the	risks	of	material	misstatement	of	the	consolidated	financial	statements,	whether	due	to	fraud	
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.
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auDitor’s responsibilities for the auDit of the consoliDateD financial 
statements (continueD)

•	 Obtain	an	understanding	of	internal	control	relevant	to	the	audit	in	order	to	design	audit	procedures	that	are	
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s 
internal control.

•	 Evaluate	the	appropriateness	of	accounting	policies	used	and	the	reasonableness	of	accounting	estimates	and	related	
disclosures made by the directors.

•	 Conclude	on	the	appropriateness	of	the	directors’	use	of	the	going	concern	basis	of	accounting	and,	based	on	the	audit	
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

•	 Evaluate	the	overall	presentation,	structure	and	content	of	the	consolidated	financial	statements,	including	the	
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

•	 Obtain	sufficient	appropriate	audit	evidence	regarding	the	financial	information	of	the	entities	or	business	activities	
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in 
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ho Wai Ming.

KPmG
Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong
17 August 2017
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consoliDateD statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

  2017 2016
 Note $ $

income
Gross rental income 5(a) 571,844,761 498,441,863
Property management fee, air-conditioning and 
 support facility income  192,583,520 176,379,047
Income from technology support centres  21,373,869 21,130,133
Land premia  – 1,903,265
Consent fee and other income  94,065,662 30,740,054
Miscellaneous income  1,831,844 8,019,940

  881,699,656 736,614,302

expenditure
Expenses for property management and technology support centres 6(a) (273,132,563) (267,045,939)
Cost of construction recognised for transfer of 
 possession of land in Industrial Estates  – (1,108,128)
Administrative and operating expenses  (204,312,227) (213,689,669)
Marketing and promotion expenses  (42,710,356) (50,608,401)
Incubation support and technology transfer expenses  (21,517,918) (15,259,143)

  (541,673,064) (547,711,280)

operating surplus before interest and depreciation  340,026,592 188,903,022

Interest income 5(b) 54,330,186 14,762,054
Interest expenses 6(b) (38,787,374) (25,090,130)

surplus before depreciation  355,569,404 178,574,946

Depreciation 11 (389,544,063) (359,319,753)
Deferred income  76,292,257 76,292,256

surplus/(deficit) and total comprehensive income for the year 7 42,317,598 (104,452,551)

The notes on pages 14 to 42 form part of these financial statements.
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consoliDateD statement of financial position
at 31 March 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

  2017 2016
 Note $ $

non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 9,135,623,177 8,114,174,746
Construction in progress 12 280,730,260 1,403,963,516
Industrial Estates 13 254,120,679 166,370,424
Available-for-sale investments 14 18,581,688 1,000,000
Bank deposits with original maturities of more than three months 17 1,829,719,719 –

total non-current assets  11,518,775,523 9,685,508,686

current assets
Land premia receivables 15 – 6,526,807
Accounts receivable, prepayments, deposits and other receivables 16 50,483,430 33,613,936
Bank deposits with original maturities of more than three months 17 8,214,355,157 948,880,856
Cash and cash equivalents 18(a) 430,529,702 91,776,003

total current assets  8,695,368,289 1,080,797,602

current liabilities
Accrued charges and other payables 19 432,359,252 397,409,035
Deposits and rental received in advance 20 326,229,670 259,898,812
Government loan 21 94,833,551 95,604,560

total current liabilities  853,422,473 752,912,407

net current assets  7,841,945,816 327,885,195
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consoliDateD statement of financial position (continueD)
at 31 March 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

  2017 2016
 Note $ $

total assets less current liabilities  19,360,721,339 10,013,393,881

non-current liabilities

Deferred income 23 1,947,697,249 2,014,006,206
Government loan 21 391,908,002 496,724,853
Medium term notes 22 1,706,426,481 1,706,290,813

total non-current liabilities  4,046,031,732 4,217,021,872

net Assets  15,314,689,607 5,796,372,009

eQuitY

Issued capital 24 15,210,397,594 5,734,397,594
Accumulated surplus  104,292,013 61,974,415

totAl eQuitY  15,314,689,607 5,796,372,009

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 17 August 2017

 lAW fAn chiu fun fanny, GBs, JP sun Po Yuen Richard, JP
 Director Director

The notes on pages 14 to 42 form part of these financial statements.
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consoliDateD statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

 issued Accumulated total
 capital surplus equity
 $ $ $

At 1 April 2015 5,734,397,594 166,426,966 5,900,824,560

Deficit and total comprehensive
 income for the year – (104,452,551) (104,452,551)

At 31 march 2016 and
 1 April 2016 5,734,397,594 61,974,415 5,796,372,009

Issuance of shares (note 24) 9,476,000,000 – 9,476,000,000

Surplus and total comprehensive
 income for the year – 42,317,598 42,317,598

At 31 march 2017 15,210,397,594 104,292,013 15,314,689,607

The notes on pages 14 to 42 form part of these financial statements.
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consoliDateD statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

  2017 2016
 Note $ $

cash flows from operating activities
Surplus/(deficit) for the year  42,317,598 (104,452,551)
Adjustments for:
 Depreciation 11 389,544,063 359,319,753
 Deferred income recognised  (76,292,257) (76,292,256)
 Interest expenses 6(b) 38,787,374 25,090,130
 Interest income 5(b) (54,330,186) (14,762,054)
 Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment 7 195,364 17,589,490

  340,221,956 206,492,512

Increase in Industrial Estates  (28,743,993) (33,309,153)
Decrease in accounts receivable, prepayments, 
 deposits and other receivables  4,241,871 10,175,689
(Decrease)/increase in accrued charges and other payables  (12,184,438) 11,166,542
Increase in deposits and rental received in advance  66,330,858 20,122,062

net cash flows from operating activities  369,866,254 214,647,652

cash flows from investing activities
Payment for purchase of items of property, plant and equipment  (30,293,874) (10,636,708)
Construction cost paid in respect of construction in progress  (245,223,508) (1,167,688,435)
Increase in available-for-sale investments  (17,581,688) (1,000,000)
Increase in bank deposits with original maturities of 
 more than three months when acquired  (9,095,194,020) (948,880,856)
Interest received  28,605,845 14,763,432
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant and equipment  1,287,268 170,510

net cash flows used in investing activities  (9,358,399,977) (2,113,272,057)

cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of new shares  9,476,000,000 –
Repayment of government loan  (95,604,560) (94,264,659)
Interest paid  (53,108,018) (54,199,214)

net cash flows generated from/(used in) financing activities  9,327,287,422 (148,463,873)

net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  338,753,699 (2,047,088,278)

cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  91,776,003 2,138,864,281

cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18(a) 430,529,702 91,776,003

The notes on pages 14 to 42 form part of these financial statements.
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notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 group information

The Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation (the “Corporation”) was incorporated under the Hong Kong 
Science and Technology Parks Corporation Ordinance (the “Ordinance”). The Corporation was incorporated on 7 May 2001 
by vesting of all rights, obligations, assets and liabilities of Provisional Hong Kong Science Park Company Limited, Hong 
Kong Industrial Estates Corporation and Hong Kong Industrial Technology Centre Corporation. The address of the principal 
place of business of the Corporation is 8/F, Bio-Informatics Centre, No. 2 Science Park West Avenue, Hong Kong Science 
Park, Pak Shek Kok, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The purposes of the Corporation and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are to facilitate the research and development and 
application of technologies in manufacturing and service industries in Hong Kong; to support the development, transfer 
and use of new or advanced technologies in Hong Kong; and to establish or develop any premises where activities related 
to the purposes prescribed above are, or are to be, carried out, and to manage and control the land and other facilities 
comprised in such premises.

The entire issued capital of the Corporation was registered under The Financial Secretary Incorporated, a corporation solely 
established under the Financial Secretary Incorporation Ordinance (Chapter 1015 of the Laws of Hong Kong) which is wholly 
owned by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the “Government”).

2.1 statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong 
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
(“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. Significant accounting policies adopted by the 
Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption for the current 
accounting period of the Group and the Corporation. Note 2.3 provides information on any changes in accounting policies 
resulting from initial application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and 
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

2.2 basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 comprise the Corporation and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values 
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements 
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.
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2.3 changes in accounting policies anD Disclosures

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of the 
Group. Of these, the following amendments are relevant to the Group:

– Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

– Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative

– Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation.

None of these developments have had a material effect on how the Group’s results and financial position for the current or 
prior periods have been prepared or presented. The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not 
yet effective for the current accounting period.

2.4 summary of significant accounting policies

(a) segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the financial statements, are identified from the 
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating 
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have 
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature of production 
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and the 
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they 
share a majority of these criteria.

No geographical segment information has been prepared as all the Group’s operations are located within Hong Kong for the 
years presented.

(b) subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable 
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. 
When assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date that control 
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits 
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised 
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that 
there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity 
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within 
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss 
is recognised.
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2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (continueD)

(b) subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with 
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when 
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial 
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Corporation’s statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see 
note 2.4(h)).

(c) available-for-sale equity securities

Available-for-sale equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is determined 
that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price 
in an active market for an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable 
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs.

Investment in securities, being those held for non-trading purposes, are classified as available-for-sale securities. At 
the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve. As an exception to this, investments 
in equity securities that do not have a quoted price in an active market for an identical instrument and whose fair value 
cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost less impairment losses 
(see note 2.4(h)).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see note 2.4(h)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is 
reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the 
investments or they expire.

(d) property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses (see note 2.4(h)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual 
value, if any, using the straight line method at annual rates as follows:

– Science Park Over the unexpired terms of the leases or 6⅔%*
– InnoCentre Over the unexpired terms of the leases
– Industrial Estates buildings 5%
– Estate centre building Over the unexpired terms of the leases
– Laboratories equipment and facilities 8⅓% to 33⅓%
– Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of lease term or 8⅓% to 33⅓%
– Furniture, fittings and equipment 5% to 33⅓%
– Motor vehicles 25%

* Depreciation rate of 6⅔% is applied to certain significant electrical and mechanical equipment inside the Science Park and the remaining 
premises and others are depreciated over the unexpired terms of the leases.
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2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (continueD)

(d) property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Science Park

The Science Park is developed for the purpose of leasing for rental and providing infrastructure to tenants for innovation 
and technology development. The Science Park is shown at actual cost which includes all direct costs together with direct 
and indirect overheads applicable to the construction, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses 
(see note 2.4(h)).

InnoCentre

The InnoCentre is developed for the purpose of supporting design development by providing design infrastructure and 
facilities and leasing office space for tenants engaged in design and display activities. The property is shown at actual cost 
which includes all direct costs together with direct and indirect overheads applicable to the construction, less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (see note 2.4(h)).

Industrial Estates buildings

Industrial Estates buildings are held to earn rental income rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services or for administrative purposes, or for sale in the ordinary course of business. The properties are shown at actual 
cost which includes all direct costs together with direct and indirect overheads applicable to the construction, less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (see note 2.4(h)).

Estate centre building

The Estate centre building is used for administrative purposes. The property is shown at actual cost which includes all 
direct costs together with direct and indirect overheads applicable to the construction, less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses (see note 2.4(h)).

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a 
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual 
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on 
the date of retirement or disposal.
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2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (continueD)

(e) construction in progress

Construction in progress is being constructed for the purpose of leasing for rental and providing infrastructure to tenants for 
innovation and technology development. Construction in progress is shown at actual cost which includes all direct costs 
together with direct and indirect overheads applicable to the construction, less accumulated impairment losses (see note 
2.4(h)).

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in progress until it is completed and is ready for its intended use. On 
completion, the amounts are reclassified to appropriate categories of assets within property, plant and equipment.

(f) industrial estates

Industrial Estates represented the pieces of land in each estate and are shown at actual cost which includes all direct costs 
together with direct and indirect overheads applicable to the construction, less accumulated impairment losses (see note 
2.4(h)). Included in the cost of each estate is the cost of land and certain construction costs related to the estate centre. The 
construction cost of the estate centre building has been excluded from the cost of the estate and is shown separately as 
above described.

(g) leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the 
arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series 
of payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless 
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases.

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of other assets held under operating leases, payments made under the leases are charged 
to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative 
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are 
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
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2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (continueD)

(h) impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and receivables

Investments in equity securities and current and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost are 
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective 
evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of the 
following loss events:

– significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

– a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

– it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

– significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the 
debtor; and

– a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and recognised as follows:

– For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the 
carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of 
return for a similar financial asset where the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses for equity securities 
carried at cost are not reversed.

– For trade and other current receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss 
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at 
initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This assessment is made collectively 
where these financial assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have not been 
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed for impairment 
collectively are based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective 
group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an 
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal 
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would have been determined 
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in 
respect of accounts receivable included within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not 
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is 
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against accounts receivable directly and 
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously 
charged to the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and 
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (continueD)

(h) impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify indications that the 
following assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

– property, plant and equipment;

– construction in progress;

– Industrial Estates; and

– investments in subsidiaries in the Corporation’s statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

– Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate 
cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group 
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

– Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit 
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units 
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the 
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in 
use (if determinable).

– Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined had no 
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in 
which the reversals are recognised.
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2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (continueD)

(i) surrendered premises held for re-grant

Surrendered premises held for re-grant are land and factories situated in the Industrial Estates held for the purpose of re-
grant for a premium and accordingly no amortisation has been provided on these assets.

Surrendered premises held for re-grant are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

(j) accounts receivable

Accounts receivable is initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2.4(h)), except where the receivables are interest-free 
loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such 
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(k) interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially 
recognised and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any 
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

(l) accounts payable

Accounts payable is initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of 
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(m) cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial 
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which 
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(n) employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the 
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, 
these amounts are stated at their present values.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) 
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are made based on a 
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of comprehensive income as they become 
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of 
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when 
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group provides employer’s contribution to the MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees at the following rates:

– 1 - 5 years of service 5% of basic salary
– 6 - 10 years of service 10% of basic salary
– Over 10 years of service 15% of basic salary
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2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (continueD)

(o) government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and 
all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a 
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is released to profit or loss 
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset to match with the depreciation of the relevant asset.

Where the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the grants are recorded at the fair value of the non-monetary 
assets and released to profit or loss over the expected useful lives of the relevant assets to match with the depreciation of 
the relevant assets.

Where the Group receives government loans granted with no or at a below-market rate of interest for the construction of a 
qualifying asset, the initial carrying amount of the government loans is determined using the effective interest rate method. 
The benefit of the government loans granted with no or at a below-market rate of interest, which is the difference between 
the initial carrying value of the loans and the proceeds received, is treated as a government grant and released to profit or 
loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

(p) provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the Corporation has a legal or 
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are 
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, 
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. 
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future 
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (continueD)

(q) revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in 
profit or loss as follows:

(i) Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods 
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be 
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part 
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable;

(ii) management fee, air-conditioning and support facility income is recognised when the services are rendered to the 
tenants;

(iii) income from technology support centres including (i) equipment leasing and service fee income, is recognised when 
the services are rendered to the tenants; and (ii) procurement sales income is recognised when the laboratories 
materials are delivered and accepted by the tenants;

(iv) land premia from transfer of possession of land and premia from re-grant of surrendered premises is recognised on 
the date of completion of transfer as stated in the relevant agreements for transfer of possession signed between the 
Group and the grantees;

(v) consent fee income from grantees of the Group in relation to the premises granted to them is recognised when the 
transfer of title of the premises from the grantees to other parties are completed;

(vi) recognition of deferred income in profit or loss arising from assets granted by the Government and a third party is 
recognised over the unexpired terms of the leases of the related assets and in accordance with the depreciation 
policies of the related assets; and

(vii) interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

(r) borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. 
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset 
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended 
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities 
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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2.4 summary of significant accounting policies (continueD)

(s) related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and 
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a 
group of which the other entity is a member);

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity 
related to the Group;

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management 
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services to the 
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, 
that person in their dealings with the entity.
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3 significant accounting juDgements anD estimates

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following accounting judgements:

(a) impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines whether the property, plant and equipment is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an 
estimation of the value in use. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected 
to arise from its use. Discount rate of 5.5% (2016: 4.75%) is used to calculate the present value of future cash flows. Where 
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, material impairment provision may arise. As at 31 March 2017, the net 
carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment is $9,135,623,177 (2016: $8,114,174,746) after taking into account the 
accumulated impairment provision of $136,422,593 recognised in respect of certain property, plant and equipment (note 
11).

(b) impairment of accounts receivable

Accounts receivable represent rental income receivable from tenants. Where there is objective evidence of recoverability 
matter, the Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of allowance for doubtful debts 
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest 
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the carrying amounts of 
accounts receivable were $7,541,882 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of $86,986) and $11,723,946 (net of allowance for 
doubtful debts of $86,986), respectively (note 16).

4 operating segment information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on its services and has three reportable 
operating segments as follows:

(a) science park

The Science Park segment refers to all services in connection with development of Hong Kong into a regional hub for 
innovation and growth in several focused clusters including Electronics, Information and Communications Technology, 
Green Technology, Biomedical Technology, Material and Precision Engineering. It also covers value added services and 
comprehensive incubation programmes for technology start-ups to accelerate their growth.

(b) innocentre

The InnoCentre segment refers to creative design support to further advance Hong Kong’s product design and brand 
building capabilities.

(c) industrial estates

The Industrial Estates segment refers to fully serviced land at the three Industrial Estates in Tai Po, Tseung Kwan O and Yuen 
Long to companies engaged in skill-intensive manufacturing and service industries as well as data centres, pharmaceutical 
processing, recycling, and multimedia industries in order to cope with the growth of the industries.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about 
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment 
results.

No measure of segment assets and liabilities are reported or used by the directors, which are the chief operating decision 
maker. Therefore, no segment assets and liabilities information is disclosed.



26 

notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

4 operating segment information (continueD)

(c) industrial estates (continued)

 2017
 science  industrial
 Park innocentre estates total
 $ $ $ $

Income 698,458,616 57,620,408 125,620,632 881,699,656
Expenditure (494,673,018) (33,919,508) (13,080,538) (541,673,064)

operating surplus before interest and 
 depreciation 203,785,598 23,700,900 112,540,094 340,026,592

Net interest (expenses)/income (12,907,923) 253 28,450,482 15,542,812

Surplus before depreciation 190,877,675 23,701,153 140,990,576 355,569,404
Depreciation, net of deferred income (292,518,421) (17,224,145) (3,509,240) (313,251,806)

(Deficit)/surplus for the year (101,640,746) 6,477,008 137,481,336 42,317,598

 2016
 Science  Industrial
 Park InnoCentre Estates Total
 $ $ $ $

Income 621,192,165 55,172,193 60,249,944 736,614,302
Expenditure (495,147,865) (33,835,694) (18,727,721) (547,711,280)

operating surplus before interest and 
 depreciation 126,044,300 21,336,499 41,522,223 188,903,022

Net interest (expenses)/income (10,352,320) 329 23,915 (10,328,076)

Surplus before depreciation 115,691,980 21,336,828 41,546,138 178,574,946
Depreciation, net of deferred income (259,658,032) (19,504,876) (3,864,589) (283,027,497)

(Deficit)/surplus for the year (143,966,052) 1,831,952 37,681,549 (104,452,551)
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5 gross rental income anD interest income

(a) gross rental income

The amount represents gross rental income in respect of Science Park, InnoCentre and investment properties situated in 
Industrial Estates.

(b) interest income

 2017 2016
 $ $

Interest income on
– bank deposits 54,306,838 14,744,100
– land premia receivables 23,348 17,954

 54,330,186 14,762,054

6 expenses for property management anD technology support 
centres anD interest expenses

(a) expenses for property management and technology support centres

Amount includes expenses for property management of $242,800,557 (2016: $232,506,822) and expenses for technology 
support centres of $30,332,006 (2016: $34,539,117). Included in expenses for property management were salaries and other 
benefits of $60,153,133 (2016: $54,754,922) and contribution to defined contribution retirement scheme of $2,620,811 (2016: 
$2,403,749) that the management companies paid to its staff and employees.

(b) interest expenses

 2017 2016
 $ $

Interest expenses on medium term notes 45,525,662 45,646,721
Interest expenses on government loan 7,593,663 8,933,564

 53,119,325 54,580,285
Less: Interest capitalised to Construction in progress (14,331,951) (29,490,155)

 38,787,374 25,090,130

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is 2.02% (2016: 1.73%) 
per annum, which is calculated based on interest expense incurred on average loan balance used to settle construction 
cost.
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7 surplus/(Deficit) for the year

The Group’s surplus/(deficit) for the year is arrived at after charging:

 2017 2016
 $ $

Auditors’ remuneration 460,908 325,000
Employee benefit expenses (excluding staff costs of 
 property management, as set out in note 6(a)):
– Wages and salaries 169,186,901 160,165,991
– Retirement scheme contribution 9,571,716 9,741,954
Operating lease charges : machinery and equipment 4,316,727 5,325,442
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment 195,364 17,589,490

8 Directors’ emoluments

No directors received any fees or emoluments in respect of their services rendered to the Group during the year (2016: Nil).

9 five highest paiD employees

Details of the remuneration of the five non-directors and highest paid employees, including the remuneration to the Chief 
Executive Officer (“CEO”) of the Corporation, for the year are set out as follows:

 2017 2016
 $ $

Salaries and other benefits 12,189,414 12,202,710
Performance related incentive payments 2,935,208 3,079,055
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 1,087,939 555,791

 16,212,561 15,837,556

On 21 July 2016, the former CEO of the Corporation has resigned and a new CEO has been appointed. The remuneration of 
the former CEO for the year is $3,120,000 (salary and other benefits: $2,400,000; performance related incentive payments: 
$600,000; retirement benefit scheme contributions: $120,000) while the remuneration of the new CEO, receivable in the 
capacity of CEO of the Corporation, for the year is $1,702,407 (salary and other benefits: $1,347,721; performance related 
incentive payments: $300,000; retirement benefit scheme contributions: $54,686).

The number of non-directors and highest paid employees whose remuneration is within the following bands is as follows:

 2017 2016

$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 – 1
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000 2 2
$3,000,001 to $3,500,000 1 –
$3,500,001 to $4,000,000 1 1
$4,000,001 to $4,500,000 1 1

 5 5
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10 taxation

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Corporation is exempt from taxation in Hong Kong in 
accordance with section 25 of the Ordinance and the subsidiaries within the Group did not earn any assessable profits for 
both 2017 and 2016.

11 property, plant anD equipment
 Properties*
 

   industrial estate  laboratories   furniture, 
 science  estates centre  equipment leasehold fittings and motor
 Park innocentre buildings building and facilities improvements equipment vehicles total
 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

cost:

At 1 April 2015 9,658,683,726 204,970,122 44,270,399 938,009 355,505,978 553,197,526 130,468,042 3,116,941 10,951,150,743
Additions 120,000 – – – 941,666 2,478,744 7,096,298 – 10,636,708
Disposals (19,610,000) – – – (7,203,618) – (468,442) – (27,282,060)
Transfer from Construction 
 in progress – – – – – 17,054,881 10,353,785 – 27,408,666

At 31 March 2016 9,639,193,726 204,970,122 44,270,399 938,009 349,244,026 572,731,151 147,449,683 3,116,941 10,961,914,057

At 1 April 2016 9,639,193,726 204,970,122 44,270,399 938,009 349,244,026 572,731,151 147,449,683 3,116,941 10,961,914,057
Additions 18,502,317 – – – 152,965 3,969,305 7,622,747 46,540 30,293,874
Disposals (4,650,514) – – – (4,953,522) (1,832,148) (1,223,956) – (12,660,140)
Transfer from Construction 
 in progress 1,311,643,379 – – – 28,722,763 35,753,504 6,061,606 – 1,382,181,252

At 31 March 2017 10,964,688,908 204,970,122 44,270,399 938,009 373,166,232 610,621,812 159,910,080 3,163,481 12,361,729,043

Accumulated 
 depreciation and 
 impairment provision:

At 1 April 2015 1,624,804,785 64,865,108 26,335,208 353,366 355,505,978 331,745,810 93,034,962 1,296,401 2,497,941,618
Charge for the year 270,033,421 4,669,110 2,213,520 25,412 53,308 66,316,011 15,397,073 611,898 359,319,753
Written back on disposals (1,850,000) – – – (7,203,618) – (468,442) – (9,522,060)

At 31 March 2016 1,892,988,206 69,534,218 28,548,728 378,778 348,355,668 398,061,821 107,963,593 1,908,299 2,847,739,311

At 1 April 2016 1,892,988,206 69,534,218 28,548,728 378,778 348,355,668 398,061,821 107,963,593 1,908,299 2,847,739,311
Charge for the year 295,131,745 4,670,204 2,213,520 25,420 4,444,738 65,758,449 16,685,180 614,807 389,544,063
Written back on disposals (3,404,041) – – – (4,953,522) (1,608,148) (1,211,797) – (11,177,508)

At 31 March 2017 2,184,715,910 74,204,422 30,762,248 404,198 347,846,884 462,212,122 123,436,976 2,523,106 3,226,105,866

net book value:

At 31 March 2017 8,779,972,998 130,765,700 13,508,151 533,811 25,319,348 148,409,690 36,473,104 640,375 9,135,623,177

At 31 March 2016 7,746,205,520 135,435,904 15,721,671 559,231 888,358 174,669,330 39,486,090 1,208,642 8,114,174,746

* These properties are held for rental
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11 property, plant anD equipment (continueD)

(a) At 31 March 2017, the Group’s leasehold properties with aggregate carrying amount of $8,924,780,660 (2016: 
$7,897,922,326) are situated in Hong Kong and held under medium term leases.

(b) In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the Group’s properties held for rental cannot be reliably measured as 
there are no active market prices for similar properties.

12 construction in progress

 2017 2016
 $ $

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 1,403,963,516 569,877,109
Additions 306,814,475 861,495,073
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (1,382,181,252) (27,408,666)
Transfer to Industrial Estates (47,866,479) –

Carrying amount at the end of the year 280,730,260 1,403,963,516

At 31 March 2017, Construction in progress, including expansion of Phase 1, is being constructed for the purpose of leasing 
for rental and providing infrastructure to tenants for innovation and technology development.

13 inDustrial estates

 2017 2016
 $ $

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 166,370,424 133,061,271
Additions 39,883,776 34,417,281
Transfer from construction in progress 47,866,479 –
Cost of construction recognised for transfer of possession of land – (1,108,128)

Carrying amount at the end of the year 254,120,679 166,370,424

14 available-for-sale investments

 2017 2016
 $ $

Unlisted equity investments, at cost 18,581,688 1,000,000



31 2016-17 Report of the Directors and Financial Statements

notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

15 lanD premia receivables

Land premia receivables represent the premia from transfer of possession of land and re-grant of premises which are 
receivable by instalments.

The aged analysis of land premia receivables that are not individually nor collectively considered to be irrecoverable is as 
follows:

 2017 2016
 $ $

Over 1 year past due – 6,526,807

Management closely monitors the credit quality of land premia receivables and considers, based on, including but not 
limited to, historical information and background of the counterparties, that the land premia receivables are past due 
but not irrecoverable as the total balances are covered by collateral. On default of payment, the Group may reclaim the 
premises granted to the grantees and management considers there are no significant credit risks.

16 accounts receivable, prepayments, Deposits anD other receivables

 2017 2016
 $ $

Accounts receivable 7,628,868 11,810,932
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (note 16(b)) (86,986) (86,986)

 7,541,882 11,723,946

Prepayments 6,399,225 9,003,196
Deposits and other receivables 36,542,323 12,886,794

 42,941,548 21,889,990

 50,483,430 33,613,936

(a) The Group allows an average credit period of 14 days to its tenants, extending up to 30 days. Before accepting any 
new tenant, the Group will internally assess the credit quality of the potential tenant and define appropriate credit 
limits. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior management and collections are followed up regularly.

For receivables due from grantees of Industrial Estates, the Group may reclaim the premises granted to the grantees in 
default of payments and the directors consider there are no significant credit risks. As at 31 March 2017, the balance of 
accounts receivable covered by collateral amounted to $4,118,240 (2016: $8,696,748). Except for receivables from Industrial 
Estates’ grantees and tenants, the Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.
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16 accounts receivable, prepayments, Deposits anD other receivables 
(continueD)

(b) The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year is as follows:

 2017 2016
 $ $

At the beginning of the year 86,986 115,096
Uncollectible amounts – (28,110)

At the end of the year 86,986 86,986

Included in the above allowance for doubtful debts of accounts receivable is a provision for individually irrecoverable 
accounts receivable of $86,986 (2016: $86,986) with carrying amounts before provision of $86,986 (2016: $86,986).

(c) The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be 
irrecoverable are as follows:

 2017 2016
 $ $

Neither past due nor impaired 1,876,430 899,253
1-60 days past due 1,967,083 2,348,135
61-90 days past due 101,836 224,182
91-120 days past due 21,796 162,054
Over 120 days past due 3,574,737 8,090,322

 7,541,882 11,723,946

Receivables that were neither past due nor irrecoverable relate to a large number of diversified tenants for whom there was 
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not irrecoverable related to a number of independent tenants that have a good track 
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors are of the opinion that no allowance for doubtful debts is 
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still 
considered fully recoverable.

17 banK Deposits with original maturities of more than three months

The balance represents deposits placed with banks, with original maturities ranging from three months to two years.

As at 31 March 2017, these bank deposits carried interest at the average interest rate of 1.57% (2016: 1.08%) per annum.
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18 cash anD cash equivalents

(a) the balance represents cash at banks and on hand.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with 
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

(b) non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group has recovered receivables of HK$11,139,783 by the reclaim of land from a 
grantee.

19 accrueD charges anD other payables

 2017 2016
 $ $

Accrued charges 386,657,485 345,510,462
Other payables 45,701,767 51,898,573

 432,359,252 397,409,035

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms.

20 Deposits anD rental receiveD in aDvance

Deposits received from tenants of $125,406,175 (2016: $104,867,601) are expected to be settled after one year. The remaining 
balances are expected to be settled within one year.

21 government loan

Government loan is repayable as follows:

 2017 2016
 $ $

current
Amount due within one year 94,833,551 95,604,560

non-current
Amount due within second year 96,074,914 96,830,211
Amount due within third year 97,332,192 98,071,574
Amount due within fourth year 98,605,588 99,328,852
Amount due within fifth year 99,895,308 100,602,248
Amount due after five years – 101,891,968

Amount due over one year 391,908,002 496,724,853

 486,741,553 592,329,413
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21 government loan (continueD)

Government loan was obtained from the Government in 2008 for the construction of the Science Park Phase 2.

Government loan is unsecured and bears interest rate at the “no-gain-no-loss” floating interest rate of the Government of 
1.28% (2016: 1.28%) per annum during the year. The loan is repayable to the Government by 15 annual instalments until 
2022.

22 meDium term notes

 2017 2016
 $ $

Medium term notes (“MTN”) 1,706,426,481 1,706,290,813

5-year term notes of $855,000,000 and 10-year term notes of $852,000,000 were issued in July 2014 for the construction of 
the Science Park Phase 3, with direct transaction costs of $935,500.

MTN are guaranteed by the Government and bear interest rate at the fixed interest rate at 2.12% and 3.20% for 5-year term 
notes and 10-year term notes, respectively, per annum. The 5-year term and 10-year term MTN are repayable on 11 July 
2019 and 11 July 2024, respectively.

23 DeferreD income

The balance mainly represents the value of assets granted by the Government in respect of the set up of the Science Park 
with the corresponding assets capitalised as property, plant and equipment at the date of grant. Such deferred income is 
recognised as income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income to match the charges of depreciation of the 
relevant assets granted.

24 issueD capital

Authorised, issued and fully paid: no. of shares $

At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 5,734,397,594 5,734,397,594
Issuance of new shares 9,476,000,000 9,476,000,000

 15,210,397,594 15,210,397,594

The Corporation was incorporated on 7 May 2001 by vesting of all rights, obligations, assets and liabilities of Provisional 
Hong Kong Science Park Company Limited, Hong Kong Industrial Estates Corporation and Hong Kong Industrial Technology 
Centre Corporation. The Corporation’s initial capital of $1,836,397,594 represented the net assets of the three entities 
vested in the Corporation on that day in accordance with section 17 of the Ordinance. Subsequently, over the prior years, 
additional 3,898,000,000 ordinary shares of $1 each were issued at par in six lots to the Government for cash.

During the year, additional 9,476,000,000 ordinary shares of $1 each were issued at par to the Government for cash.

At the end of the reporting period, the entire amount of 15,210,397,594 shares of $1 each of the Corporation were registered 
under The Financial Secretary Incorporated, a corporation solely established under the Financial Secretary Incorporation 
Ordinance (Chapter 1015 of the Laws of Hong Kong) which is wholly owned by the Government.
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25 operating lease arrangements

(a) as lessor

The Group leases its properties under operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one 
to six years. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent 
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 March 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its 
tenants falling due as follows:

 2017 2016
 $ $

Within one year 537,498,380 394,399,415
In the second to fifth years inclusive 712,086,534 409,791,940
After five years 14,725,946 36,938,648

 1,264,310,860 841,130,003

(b) as lessee

The Group leases certain of its laboratories equipment under operating lease arrangements. Leases for equipment are 
negotiated for terms of one year.

At 31 March 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due 
as follows:

 2017 2016
 $ $

Within one year 874,805 2,387,778

26 commitments

At 31 March 2017, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the reporting period:

 2017 2016
 $ $

Contracted, but not provided for:
– construction of the Science Park 225,462,805 331,729,446
– others 70,436,644 35,848,682

 295,899,449 367,578,128

Authorised, but not contracted for:
– construction of the Science Park 4,628,614,773 574,661,934
– others 8,170,406,788 123,097,604

 12,799,021,561 697,759,538
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27 material relateD party transactions

The Corporation is wholly owned by the Government. Transactions between the Group and Government departments, 
agencies or Government controlled entities are considered to be related party transactions and identified separately in 
these financial statements.

(a) in addition to the balances and transactions disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group 
had the following material transactions with related parties during the year:

  2017 2016
 Note $ $

The Government:
Interest expenses on government loan (i) 7,593,663 8,933,564
Financial guarantee received on MTN issued (ii) 1,707,000,000 1,707,000,000

The Government’s controlled-entities:
Rental income (iii) 30,984,629 31,550,545
Management fee and air-conditioning income (iv) 12,654,536 14,225,501
Equipment rental and procurement sales income (v) 4,762,043 9,176,673

Notes:

(i) Interest expenses on the government loan were charged at the ‘no-gain-no-loss’ floating interest rate of the 
Government.

(ii) MTN issued were guaranteed by the Government (note 22).

(iii) Rental income from the Government’s controlled entities was determined according to terms similar to those offered 
to the Group’s third party tenants.

(iv) Management fee and air-conditioning income from the Government’s controlled entities was determined according 
to terms similar to those offered to the Group’s third party tenants.

(v) Equipment rental and procurement sales income from the Government’s controlled entities was determined 
according to terms similar to those offered to the Group’s third party tenants.

(b) outstanding balance with the government

The Government has agreed to make available a loan facility of up to $1,043,000,000 to the Group to be repaid over 15 
annual instalments according to the repayment schedule issued by the Government and bears interest at the Government’s 
‘no-gain-no-loss’ interest rate (note 21). The Group has not additionally drawn down any loans during the year (2016: Nil). At 
31 March 2017, the outstanding balance of the government loan amounted to $496,724,853 (2016: $592,329,413).

(c) No directors received any remunerations in respect of their services rendered to the Group during the year (2016: Nil).

Details of the remuneration of the five non-directors and highest paid employees, including the CEO of the Corporation are 
disclosed in note 9 to the financial statements.
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28 financial risK management anD fair values of financial instruments

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk arises in the normal course of its operations. These 
risks are managed by the Group’s financial management policies and practices described below:

(a) interest rate risk

The cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to the Group’s variable-rate government loan. The Group currently does 
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging 
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rate risk has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for the above-
mentioned financial instruments at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of 
variable-rate government loan during the year was the amount for the whole year.

If interest rate had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s surplus for 
the year ended 31 March 2017 would decrease/increase by $4,967,249 (2016: deficit for the year would increase/decrease by 
$5,923,294).

(b) credit risk

The Group provided services only to recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all tenants who 
wish to obtain credit are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an 
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

With respect to credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets which mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents and bank 
deposits, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the 
carrying amounts of these instruments at the end of the reporting period.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from land premia receivables and accounts 
receivable are disclosed in notes 15 and 16, respectively, to the financial statements.

(c) liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors its liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains a level of cash 
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management and adequate utilisation of available loan facilities to finance the 
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturities for its financial liabilities. The table has been 
drawn up to reflect the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be 
required to pay.
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28 financial risK management anD fair values of financial instruments 
(continueD)

(c) liquidity risk (continued)

 2017
 

 on demand    total
 or less than    undiscounted carrying
 3 months Within 1 year 2 - 5 years over 5 years cash flows amount
 $ $ $ $ $ $

Accrued charges and 
 other payables 422,535,132 9,824,120 – – 432,359,252 432,359,252
Deposits and rental 
 received in advance 70,173,732 130,649,763 120,214,800 5,191,375 326,229,670 326,229,670
Government loan – 103,198,223 412,792,894 – 515,991,117 486,741,553
Medium term notes – 45,390,000 991,245,210 920,122,654 1,956,757,864 1,706,426,481

 492,708,864 289,062,106 1,524,252,904 925,314,029 3,231,337,903 2,951,756,956

 2016
 

 On demand    Total
 or less than    Undiscounted Carrying
 3 months Within 1 year 2 - 5 years Over 5 years cash flows amount
 $ $ $ $ $ $

Accrued charges and 
 other payables 387,460,553 9,948,482 – – 397,409,035 397,409,035
Deposits and rental 
 received in advance 57,427,636 97,603,575 89,918,512 14,949,089 259,898,812 259,898,812
Government loan – 103,198,223 412,792,894 103,198,223 619,189,340 592,329,413
Medium term notes – 45,389,994 1,005,448,060 941,485,685 1,992,323,739 1,706,290,813

 444,888,189 256,140,274 1,508,159,466 1,059,632,997 3,268,820,926 2,955,928,073

(d) capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its operations and maximise stakeholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To 
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may issue new shares or raising additional debt. No changes were made 
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

The Group monitors capital by the use of funding from the Government. Accordingly, in the opinion of the directors, the 
presentation of the quantitative capital management analysis of the Group would provide no additional useful information 
to the users of the financial statements.



39 2016-17 Report of the Directors and Financial Statements

notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

29 corporation-level statement of financial position

 2017 2016
 $ $

non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 9,135,623,177 8,114,174,746
Construction in progress 280,730,260 1,403,963,516
Industrial Estates 254,120,679 166,370,424
Investment in subsidiaries 20,000 20,000
Bank deposits with original maturities of more than three months 1,829,719,719 –

total non-current assets 11,500,213,835 9,684,528,686

current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries 25,880,015 3,607,831
Land premia receivables – 6,526,807
Accounts receivable, prepayments, deposits and other receivables 50,483,430 33,613,936
Bank deposits with original maturities of more than three months 8,214,355,157 948,880,856
Cash and cash equivalents 430,529,702 91,776,003

total current assets 8,721,248,304 1,084,405,433

current liabilities
Accrued charges and other payables 432,359,252 397,409,035
Deposits and rental received in advance 326,229,670 259,898,812
Government loan 94,833,551 95,604,560

total current liabilities 853,422,473 752,912,407

net current assets 7,867,825,831 331,493,026

total assets less current liabilities 19,368,039,666 10,016,021,712

non-current liabilities
Deferred income 1,947,697,249 2,014,006,206
Government loan 391,908,002 496,724,853
Interest-bearing borrowings 1,706,426,481 1,706,290,813

total non-current liabilities 4,046,031,732 4,217,021,872

net Assets 15,322,007,934 5,798,999,840

eQuitY

Issued capital 15,210,397,594 5,734,397,594
Accumulated surplus 111,610,340 64,602,246

totAl eQuitY 15,322,007,934 5,798,999,840
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30 possible impact of amenDments, new stanDarDs anD interpretations 
issueD but not yet effective for the year enDeD 31 march 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new standards 
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2017 and which have not been adopted in these financial 
statements. These include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

 effective for
 accounting periods
 beginning on or after

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018

HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments and new standards is 
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of the new standards 
which may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts are 
discussed below. As the Group has not completed its assessment, further impacts may be identified in due course and will 
be taken into consideration when determining whether to adopt any of these new requirements before their effective date 
and which transitional approach to take, where there are alternative approaches allowed under the new standards.

hKfrs 9, financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: 
Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for classification and measurement of financial 
assets, calculation of impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates 
without substantive changes the requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and derecognition of financial instruments and 
the classification of financial liabilities. Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s consolidated financial 
statements are as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value 
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and (3) fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). For equity securities, the 
classification is FVTPL regardless of the entity’s business model. The only exception is if the equity security is not held for 
trading and the entity irrevocably elects to designate that security as FVTOCI. If an equity security is designated as FVTOCI 
then only dividend income on that security will be recognised in profit or loss. Gains, losses and impairments on that 
security will be recognised in other comprehensive income without recycling.
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30 possible impact of amenDments, new stanDarDs anD interpretations 
issueD but not yet effective for the year enDeD 31 march 2017 
(continueD)

hKfrs 9, financial instruments (continued)

(a) Classification and measurement (continued)

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group expects that its financial assets currently measured at amortised cost will 
continue with their respective classification and measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

With respect to the Group’s financial assets currently classified as “available-for-sale”, these are investments in equity 
securities which the Group may classify as either FVTPL or irrevocably elect to designate as FVTOCI (without recycling) on 
transition to HKFRS 9. The Group has not yet decided whether it will irrevocably designate these investments as FVTOCI 
or classify them as FVTPL. Either classification would give rise to a change in accounting policy as the current accounting 
policy for unquoted available-for-sale equity investments is to recognise in the statement of financial position at cost less 
impairment losses in accordance with the Group’s policy set out in note 2.4(c). This change in policy will have impact on the 
Group’s net assets, total comprehensive income and profit.

The classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged from HKAS 
39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a financial liability designated at FVTPL that is attributable to 
changes of that financial liability’s own credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income (without reclassification 
to profit or loss). The Group currently does not have any financial liabilities designated at FVTPL and therefore this new 
requirement may not have any impact on the Group on adoption of HKFRS 9.

(b) Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit loss” 
model. Under the expected credit loss model, it will no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur before an impairment 
loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required to recognise and measure expected credit losses as either 12-month 
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on the asset and the facts and circumstances. This new 
impairment model may result in an earlier recognition of credit losses on the Group’s trade receivables and other financial 
assets. However, a more detailed analysis is required to determine the extent of the impact.
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31 list of subsiDiaries

At 31 March 2017, the particulars of the Corporation’s subsidiaries are as follows:

 Place of Particulars of 
 incorporation  issued and  Group’s 
subsidiary and operations paid up capital effective interest Principal activity

STP Assets Holding Limited Hong Kong $10,000 100% Investment holding

STP Corporate Venture Limited Hong Kong $10,000 100% Investment holding

CVF ONE Limited Hong Kong $1,000 100% Investment holding

CVF TWO Limited Hong Kong $1,000 100% Investment holding

CVF THREE Limited Hong Kong $1,000 100% Investment holding

CVF FOUR Limited Hong Kong $1,000 100% Investment holding

CVF FIVE Limited Hong Kong $1,000 100% Inactive
   
CVF SIX Limited Hong Kong $1,000 100% Inactive

32 approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 17 August 2017.


